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About LaBranche :& Co Inc.

We are the parent corporation of LaBranche & Co. LI.C, one of the oldest and largest specialists in equit ; secu-
rities listed on the New York Stock Exchange and the American Stock Exchange. We are also the parent of
LaBranche Structured Hoidmgs Inc., the holding company for a group of entities that are specialists and market-
makers in options, futurés and cxchange -traded funds, or “E'TFs,” traded on various exchanges. As a specialist and
market-maker, we play an important role in providing liquidity and continuity in our portfolio of listed company
stocks, options, futures and ETFs. The specialist facilitates buying and selling of securities of the companies it rep-

resents by bringing timely information, critical expertise, and needed liquidity to the forefront of the markerplace.
. \

Collectively, we are the ’Qpedalist and Market-Maker for over 600 companies, 31 of which are in the S&P 100
Index and 109 of which are in the $&P 500 Index. We are also the Specialist and Market-Maker in U.S a}ld for-
eign-listed ETFs and a Specialist in over 700 classes of equity and index options. LaBranche Financial Serv1ct.s,
LLC, another of our operating subsidiaries, provides securities execution, clearing and direct-access floor broker-
age services to institutional investors.

Financial Highlights .

For thc‘ Year Ended December j], 2006 ‘ 2005 2004 2003 2002
Income Statement Data: : .
Revenues, Net of Interest Expense $ 4335 $ .250.7 $ 2553 $ 2578 $ 14043
Net Income (Loss) Applicable to
Common Stockholders % 1368 § % 375 $ (46.0) 8 (183.4) $ 803
Earnings (Loss) per Share (diluted) $ 222 $°061 5 (07) S (368 § | 134
Cash Dividends Declared per Share - § - - b - ) 24 $ -
i ;
Balance Sheet Data:
Total Assets { $5,374.9 $ 3,664.9 $2,055.1 $1,963.1 § 1,9128
“Total Long-"Term Obligations $ 4662 $ '490.8 $ 4987 $ 2759 $ [383.2
Stockholders’ Equirty $ 874.7 § 7335 $ 693.0 5 773.0 $ 9897
Operational Data: .
Number of Our NYSE Common
Stock Listings 555 563 580 578 589
Total Share Volume on the NYSE of ‘
Our Specialist Stocks {in Billions) 106 , 101 96 95 102
“Total Dollar Value on the NYSE of |

QOur Specialist Stocks (in Billions) $ 3,778 § 3,355 5 2,819 S 2477 $ 2,686
NYSE Average Daily Share ]
Volume (in Millions) 1,827 1,647 1,457 1,398 1441

Number of Our AMEX Common .

Stock Listings » 86 ! 104 108 82
Number of Qur ETF Listlngs 75 .52 18 ' 1 -
Number of Qur Option Listings 753 L 617 321 215 143

{In Millions, Except for per Share Amounts and Operational Data) :
(1} Includes obligations under our subordinated debt. (excluding those related to Contributed Exchange Memberships)
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To Our Shareholders

=)

LaBranche earned $136.8 million, or $2.22 per share,
in 2006 versus $37.5 million, or $0.61 per share, in
2005. Included in our results was a gain of $135.6 mil-
lion on the appreciation of our position in NYSE
Group stock, which we received in the March 7, 2006
demutualization of the New York Stock Exchange.
Excluding the gain on our NYSE Group stock, our
2006 operating income was $1.2 million or $0.02 per
share.

Several factors contributed to the decline in our
operating profits in 2006. Voladility, with the excep-
tion of the quarter ended in June, was subdued.
NYSE market share and trading volumes declined
from historical levels, providing our specialists with
fewer opportunites to interact with significantly
reduced order flow. Mechanization spread from the
execution of orders to their actual originaton with
algorithms playing an ever larger role in trading deci-
sions. Automatic execution, encouraged by rules
changes at both the NYSE Group and elsewhere has
expanded, making it harder for our traders to interact
in the pricing of trades.

The average trade size on the NYSE has declined to
less than 200 shares and flows are increasingly affect-
ed by institunonal and professionally generated odd-
lot orders. These and other developments have made
it far more difficult for us to interact with our cus-
tomers and to provide liquidity in a way to which we
and the investment community have come to expect
over the years. We, however, are continuing to devel-
op trading technology which we believe will enable us
to interact with orders in the increasingly electronic
marketplace.

We have always anticipated and welcomed
technological change and efficiency at the point of
sale. We have also been resolute in our conviction that
a central aucton featuring dedicated capital by a spe-
cialist provided the best, fairest and deepest markets.
We sl hold those beliefs and have consistently built
capital and remain committed to.our role to provide a
more efficient market.

Of major importance to us is the introduction
and full implementadon of the NYSE HYBRID mar-

ket and the rules introduced by the recently-enacted




Regulation NMS. We believe the specialist business

model will continue to function in a much faster elec-’

tronic marketplace, but it is too early to tell how our
role will evolve. In addidon, it is possible that the
recent rapid pace of changé in the regulatory, environ-
ment will continue, keépiﬁg aspects of our business
model in flux. ‘As we have continued to state, securi-
ties markets thrive on liquidity and those who provide
]1qu1d1tv should be rewarded for their efforts.

Against this backdrop, we have continued to
adapt our. business and reduce costs. In the fourth
quarter of 2006, we reduced our headcount and con-
dnued to invest in technblbgy. We have centralized
and reduced our real estate impriht consolidated our
dara infrastructure and’ ehnnmted services as -they
have become urmecessary or redundant. Mamgement
has continued to efficienty udlize the Companys
resources, and our ﬁllancial-_qon(i{doﬁ remains sound.

" Our investment in'non-specialist businesses,
through which we have established a presence on sev-
eral exchanges, as well as in London and Hong Kong,

has-begun to yield resultgsgln December 2006, we
" i ‘a . K < >

+

mvested; in a parthership with the Chicago Board
Opmom Exchange and other partners in the CBSX,
which is an electronic “hybrid” stock market modeled
after the current CBOE options platform. We contin-

ue to ex])and our connectivity and assess opportynities
in markets adjacent to our areas of expertise.

While we remain committed to our roles as
spec1allst and traditional market maker, we are hund-
ful that| jcontinuing changes in market structulre are
likely to'impact the ways in which we trade. As these
changeszunfold, we will continue to assess our current
businesses as well as new ‘onés and will deplo!y our
resourcé-:s in ways that provide needed services to the
capital rarkets and sadsfactory returns to our share-
hold\ers.ﬁ h

/ Am//é /afr/

Michael LaBranche
Chairman, President and CEO
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL .
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.

You shoutd read the follmwing discussion of our financial condition and
results of operutions together with the financial statements and the notes
1o such statements ncluded elsewbere in this filing. This discussion con-
tains forward-lpoking statemients based on onr current expectations,
assumiptions, estimates and projections abont us and our mdustry. These
Jorward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties including,
but not limited to those discussed in “Risk Factors™ set forth in Itemn 14
of this annual veport. Our actual vesults conld differ materially from
those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of cer-
rain fitctors. We undertake no obligarion to update publicly any for-
ward-loeking statements for any reason, even if new information
becomres available or other events occur in the furure.

EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW

The equity and equity derivative trading business is continuing to
experience significant change. In December 2006 and January
2007, the NYSE, AMEX and other auction-based exchanges
implemented new trading systems in which the markets have
become almost completely electronic. These inidatives were
undertaken in order to comply with Reguladon NMS, expected
to be effective in March 2007. In addition, decimalization, sector
and index trading strategies and a decline in block trading have
led to increased program trading and a decline in average order
size on the NYSE and other exchanges, which reduces our ability
to participate in certain trades.

The NYSE’s new HYBRID market model has had the most sig-
nificant impact on our role as a specialist. The HYBRID model
is expected to allow specialists to interact in a “fast” and more
automated market. Most of the trades which had been executed
by us as agent are now being matched electronically, and we are
now inserting our capital and adding liquidity to the marker
" electronically, rather than manually, except in certain “break-out”
situations. Although these changes affect the way in which stocks
are traded, many elements of the central auction market are pre-
served. Even with the completed NYSE/Archipelago merger, the
HYBRID model and SEC’s Regulation NMS initatives, senior
NYSE officials have publicly stated that there will condnue to be
an auction market with a central point of sale. They have also
stated that specialists will continue to play an integial role in pro-
viding liquidity and will continue to have an affirmative obliga-
+ tion to make a fair and orderly market. A specialist’ primary role
is to provide liquidity by committing capital when market imbal-
ances occur, and we believe that technology cannot eliminate
these marker imbalances. Accordingly, we anticipate that special-
ists will continue to play an important role in stock trading but
will do so in a more electronic environment.

We are committed to providing liquidity and improving market
quality. Even though our participation rate inidally has declined
from pre-HYBRID levels, we believe the wrading tools we are
developing may result in higher participation rates over time along
with opportunities to increase revenues, ‘Testing on our new
advanced HYBRID technology on a pilot basis indicates that our
participation rates can increase. The new technology, which we
have been developing for the past three years, is being deploved in

stages with the goal of meaningtul implementation in 2007. We
expect to adjust these technologies on an ongoing basts, and antci-
pate that they will enable us to increase the liquidity of our mar-
kets. The financial results of our specialist and marker-making
business are highly dependent on-trading volumes and volatlity. As
volumes grow, we helieve market voladlity will returnas well,
which will enable us to participate as principal in more transactions
in our specialist and market-making operations.

We have significantly cut costs throughout our organization
through the reduction of legal, professional and exchange fees,
the midgation of compensation costs through restructuring and
automation. We have reduced the legacy costs of operating a
manual market by reducing our headcount by 126 employees
during the fourth quarter of 2006 and January 2007. We also are
examining our opportunities relating to the retirement of out-
standing debt with the goal of reducing our fixed charge interest
expense.

One of the other things on which we are focusing is our ability to
quote electronically in different marketplaces simuitaneously so
that we are able to get our quotes and disseminate our interest in
different marketplaces.

Suructured products such as ETFs continue to grow in populanity.
ET¥Fs which have some characteristics similar to sector and index
funds trade continually throughout the day on an exchange. The
liquidity and flexibility of being exchange-traded has led to sub-
stantial growth in these products. ETF assets grew to approxiinate-
ly $422.0 billion as of January 31, 2007 from $296.0 billion as of
December 31, 2005, We believe that the growth in these products
will continue as investors seek to lower investment costs, manage
tax liability and hedge portfolio risks. It is our intention to contin-
ue to work with ETF issuers as they launch new products and to
provide added liquidity in ETF trading.

We also believe the trading of options, indexes and other prod-
ucts will follow the pattern of cash equities. The products that
require little price discovery and negotiation will default to an
electronic matching facility while the more complex and illiquid
products will continue to rely on specialists and lead market-
makers to effect trades. :

We expect the first tranche of our 3.1 million NYX shares to
become unrestricted on Alarch 7, 2007, This event will increase
the assets constiruting regulatory capital in our NYSE specialist
and execution and clearing businesses. The combined liquidity
adjustments from the NLA reduction and elimination of the
restrictions on our NYX shares will result in approximately $150
million of additional free cash over the first two quarters of 2007
before our debt servicing payments, based on the closing market
price per share of NYX stock on February 28, 2007. Our free
cash at December 31, 2006 was approximately $149 million,

v




NEW ACCOUNTING DEVELOPMENTS

Employee Incentive Plans We adopted the fair value recogni-
tion provisions for share-based awards pursuant to SFAS No.
123(R) effecuve]anuary 1, 2006. Please refer to Footnote 7,
“Employee Incentive P]ans of our consolidated financial state-
ments in this report for additional information and disclosure.
Accoum:mg for Tax Uncertainties In July 2006, the FASB
issued Interpretation No. 48 “Accéunting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes” (“FIN 48”). FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for
income taxes by prescribing the mlmmum recognition thresheld
a tax position is required to meet befon, being recognized in the
financial statements. FIN 48 also prowdes guidance on de-recog-
nition, measurement, classification, interest and penalties,
accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition. FIN 48
will be effective beginning in the first quarter of 2007. We have
evaluated the potental impact of FIN 48, and at this time, we
believe that our contingent tax reserve and current and deferred
income taxes are adequately stated in conformity with FAS 109
and FIIN 48,

Fair Value Measurements In September 2006, the FASB
issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (“SFAS 1577).
SFAS 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measur-
ing fair value and enhances disclosures about fair value measure-
ments required under other accounting pronouncements, but
does not change existing guidance'as to whether or not an instru-
ment is carried at fair value. SFAS 157 nullifies the guidance in
EITF 02-3 which precluded the rccognition of a trading profit at
the inception of a derivatve contrau unless the fair value of such
derivative is obtained from a quoted marker price, or other valua-
tion technique incorporating observable market data. SFAS 157
also precludes the use of a liquidity or block discount, when
measuring instruments traded in an active market at fair value.
SFAS 157 requires that costs related w acquiring financial instru-
ments carried at fair value should not be capitalized, but rather
should be expensed as incurred. SFAS 157 also clarifics that an’
issuer’s credit standing should be considered when measuring lia-
hilities at fair value. SFAS 157 is effective for financial statements
issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, with
earlier application permitted and encouraged. SFAS 157 must be
applied prospectively, except that the provisions refated to block
discounts and the guidance in EI'TF 02-3 are to be applied as a
one time cumulative effect adjustment to opening retained earn-
ings in the first interim period for the fiscal year in which SFAS
157 is initially applied. We are currently evaluating the potential
impact, if any, that the adoption of SFAS 157 will have on our
consolidated financial statements.:

Accounting for Fair Value Opton for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS
No. 159, “Accounting for Fair Value Option for Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities ” {(*SFAS 159"). SFAS 159 permits enti-
ties to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain
other items at fair value. The objective is to improve financial
reporting by providing entities with the opportunity to mitigate

volatility in reported earnings caused by measuring related assets
and liabilities differently without having to apply|con_1plex hedge
accounting provisions. We currently report the majority of our
financial assets and liabilities at fair value in compliance with
industry guidelines for brokers and dealers in seciurities We have
a significant investment in intangibles and goodmll as well as
public debr which is not accounted for at fair value We believe

_SFAS 159 exempts intangible assets and good\vlll from fair value

reporting. We currently are evaluating the potential impact that
the adoption of SFAS 139 will have on our financial statements.

" CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Goodwill and Other Intang'lble Assets We determme the fair
value of each of our reporting units and the fair value of each
repurting unit’s goodwill under the provisions of Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 14-2, “Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets.” In determining fair value, we use stan-
dard analytical approaches to business enterprise Valuaden
(“BEV™), such as the market comparable approach and the
income approach The market comparable approach is based on

. comparisons of the subject company to similar companies

engaged in an actual merger or acquisition or to pubi]c companies
whose stocks are actively traded. As part of this process, multiples
of value relative to financial variables, such as eammgs or stock-
holders’ equity, are developed and applied ta the appropnate
financial variables of the subject company to mdlcate its value,
The income approach involves estimatng the present value of the
subject company’s future cash flows by using prO}ecuom of the
cash flows that the business is expected to genemte, and discount-
ing these cash flows at a g'wen rate of return. Each of! these BEV
methodologies requires the use of management estimates and
assumptions. For example, under the market comparable
approach, we assigned a certain control premiumI o the public
market price of our common stock as of the valuauon date of our
2006 year-end impairment tesr, in estimating the falrlvalue of our
specm]lst reporting unit. Similarly, under the income approach we
assumed certain growth rates for our revenues, expenses, earnings
before interest, income taxes, deprecmnon and arlnomzatlon,
returns on working capital, returns on other assets and capital
expenditures, among others. We also assumed certain discount
rates and certain terminal growth rates in our calculations. For
our year-end 2006 goodwill impairment tests, we engaged an
independent business valuadon firm to assist us in our BEV analy-
ses. Given the subjectvity involved in selecting which BEV
approach to use and in determining the input vanables for use in
our analyses, it is possible that a different valuation model and the
seleetion of different input variables could produ!ce a‘materially
different estimate of the fair value of our goodwill.

We review the reasonableness of the carrying value of our good-
will on an annual calendar basis (i.e., December|31) unless an
event or change in circumstances requires an interim reassess- -
ment of impairment. During 2006, there were no interim
changes in circumstances that necessitated good:will impairment
testing prior to our annual required testing of goodwlll Asa
result of our analysis of the above-mentioned factors for the year



.

ended December 31, 2006, with the assistance of the independ-
ent business valuation firm, we determined that there was no’
impairment of our goodwill under SFAS No. 142. We cannot

- provide assurance that future goodwill impairment testing will
not result in impairment charges in subsequent periods.

Another of our intangible assets; as defined under SFAS No. 142,

_is our trade name. We determine the fair value of our trade name
by applying the income approach using the royalty savings
‘methodology. This method assumes that the trade name has
‘value to the extent we are relieved of the obligation to pay royal-
ties for the benefits received from it. Application 6f this method-
ology requires estimating an appropriate royalty rate; which is
typically expressed as a percentage of revenue. Estimating an
appropriate royalty rate includes reviewing evidence from com-
parable licensing agreements and considering qualitative factors
affecting the trade name. Given the subjectivity involved i
selecting which BEV approach to use and in determining the
input variables for use in our analyses, it is possible that a differ-
ent valuation model and the selection of different input variables
could produce a materially different estimate of fair value of our
trade name. We review the reasonableness of the carrying
amount of our trade name on an annual basis in conjunction with
our goadwill impairment assessment. As of December 31, 2006,
no impairment of our trade name existed. We cannot provide
_assurance that future trade name impairment testing will not
result in impairment charges in subsequent periods.

We amortize our identifiable intangible stock listing rights over
their estimated useful lives in accordance with SFAS No. 142,
and test for potential impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances suggest that an asset or asser group’s carrying value
may not be fully recoverable in accordance with SFAS No. 144.
An impairment loss, calculated as the difference between the esti-
mated fair value and the carrying value of an asset or asset group,
is recognized if the sum of the estimated undiscounted cash flows
relating to the asset or asset group is less than the corresponding
carrying value. As a result of our testing and analysis for the year
ended December 31, 2006, with the assistance of an independent
business valuation finn, we determined that there was no impair-
ment of our stock listing rights under SFAS No. 144. We cannot
provide assurance that future stock listing rights impairment test-
ing will not result in impairment charges in subsequent periods,
particularly undl the effects of the NYSE's HYBRID model can
be more adequately assesed.

A prolonged period of weakness in equity markets and the trad-
ing of securities on the NYSE and AMEX could adversely impact
our businesses and impair the value of our goodwill and/or iden-
tifiable intangible assets. In addition, certain events could indicate
a potential impairment of our identifiable intangible assets,
including changes in market structure thar could adversely affect
our specialist businesses; an adverse action or assessment by a
regulator; or prolonged systemic failure of our self-developed
specialist trading system.

Non-Marketable Securities The use of fair value to measure
certain non-marketable investments is a critical accounting esti-
mate. Investments in non-marketable securities consist of invest-
ments in equity securities of private companies, limited liability
company interests and limited parmership interests, which do not
have readily available price quotatons. Certain investments in
non-marketable securities are initially carried at cost, as an
approximation of fair value. Adjustments to carrying value are
made if there are third-party ransactions evidencing a change in
value, For certain other investments in non-marketable securites,
we adjust their carrying value by applying the equity method of
accounting, and for our investment in a limited partnership inter-
est, we adjust its carrying value by recognizing our share of the
partnership’s quarterly results of operadons. In addition, if and
when available, management considers other relevant factors
relating to non-marketable investments in gstimating their fair
value, such as the financial performance of the entity, its cash
flow forecasts, rends within that entity’s industry and any specific
rights associated with our investment—such as conversion fea-

" tures—among others.

Given management’s judgment involved in valuing certain of our
non-marketable securities, it is possible, as of a given point in
time, that a third-party could reach a different conclusion of fair
value utilizing the same variables as we have in our analysis.

We account for our investment in the NYX stock at estimated
fair value of such restricted shares pursuant to the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘ATCPA”} Audit and
Accounring Guide — Brokers and Dealers in Securities.

Non-marketable investments are tested for potential impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances suggest that an
asset’s carrying value may be impaired.

Other-Than-Temporary Impairment of Exchange
Memberships The determination of the fair value of our
exchange memberships is a cridcal accounting estimate.
Exchange memberships owned by us are originally carried at”
cost, pursuant to the AICPA Audit and Accounting Guide—
Brokers and Dealers in Securites. Adjustments to carrying value
are made if we deem that an “other-than-temporary” decline in
value, as defined in Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue.
No. 03-1, The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment
and Its Application te Certain Investments, and in Section M of
Topic § of the SEC staff accoundng bulletin series (“SAB No.
59™), has accurred. In determining whether the value of our
owned exchange memberships is impaired (i.e., fair market value
is below cost) and whether such impairment is temporary or
other-than-temporary, we consider many factors, including, bur
not limited to, information regarding recent sale and lease prices
of exchange memberships, historical rends of sale and lease
prices of memberships on a particular exchange and their dura- .
tion, the current condition of the particular exchange’s market
structure, legal and regulatory developments affecting the partic-
ular exchange’s market structure and earnings capability, trends in
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new listings on the particular exchange, general global and
national economic factors and our knowledge and judgment of
t_he SPCClallst and exe(.'utl()n and C]earlng lndu‘;trles ﬂnd I;hE SeCu-
rities market as a whole. As a result of our analysis of the above-
mentioned factors for the vear ended December 31, 2006, we
believe the carrying values of our owned exchange memberships
were not impaired.

We cannot prowde assurance that the consistent application of
this accoundng policy to future reportmg periods will not result
in further adjustments to the carrying value of any of our remain-
ing exchange memberships following the consummation of the
NYSE merger with Archipelago. Thls accountng policy, howev-
er, will no longer be applied in future pertods to our NYSE spe-
cialist operations because our WSE memberships were surren-
-dered in connection with the \TYSE/Archlpelago merger and our
NYSE specialist operations and cleanng operations will be con-

ducted through trading licenses.

USE OF ESTIMATES
The use of generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make certain estimates. In addition to the esti-
mates we make in connection with'fair value measurements and
the accountng for goodwill and id(f:ntiﬁable intangible assets, the
use of estimates is also important in determining provisions for
otential losses that may arise from liigadon, regulatory pro-
Eeedings and tax audirs.y e ey

We estimate and provide for potenual losses thar may arise out of
litigation, regulatory proceedings and tax audits to the extent that
such losses are probable and can be estimated, in accordance with
SFAS Ne. 5, “Accounting for Conﬁngencies ” Significant judg-

- ment is required in making these estimates and our final liabili-
ties may ultimately be materially dlfferent Our total liability in
respect of lmgatlon and reg‘ulatorv proceedings is determined on
a case-by-case basis and representsian estimate of probable losses
after considering, among other factors, the progress of each case
or proceeding, our experience and the experience of others in
similar cases or proceedings, and the opinions and views of legal
counsel. Given the inherent dlfﬁcultv of predicting the outcome
of our liigaton and regulatory matters, particularly in cases or
proceedings in which substantial or indeterminate damages or
fines are sought, we cannot estimate losses or ranges of losses for
cases or proceedings where there is only a reasonable possibility
that a loss may be incurred. See “Legal Proceedings” in Part ],
Item 3 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for information on
our judicial, regulatory and arbitration proceedings.

EXECUTION AND CLEARING RISK

Our Execution and Clearing segment through the normal
course of business, enters into vanous securities transactions as
agent. The execution, settlement and financing of these ansac-
tions can result in unrecorded market risk and concentration of
credit risk. Our execution and clearing activities involve settle-
ment and financing of various customer securities transactions on
a cash or margin basis. These activities mayv expose us to risk in

the event the customer or other broker is unable to fulfill its con-
tractual obligations and we have to purchase or sell securities at a
loss. For margin transactions, we may be exposed to significant
market risk in the event margin requirements are, not sufficient to
fully cover losses that custoimers may incur in their accounts.

RESTRUCTURING TRANSACTIONS

In the fourth quarter of 2006 and January 2007, we implemented
a restructuring plan which has resulted in a sig'niﬁcant headcount
reduction and future reduction in compensation costs ' Due pri-
marily to the automation of securities markets such a5 the
NYSE% HYBRID market, we reduced our headcbunt by 126
positions because we need fewer people to execute trades on the
floors of the exchanges on which we conduct business. As a result
of this restructuring, we incurred additonal combens}ation
expense of approximately $3.7 million in connecdon with sever-
ance and supplemental unemployment compensation. We expect
our compensaton expense and related benefits to| decline by up
to $14.1 million in 2007 as a result of thlS restmcturmg

As of January 3, 2007, we converted our LaBranche Financial
Servcies, Inc. (“LFSI”) subsidiary into a limited ]labl]lty campany
by way of a merger of LFSI with and into a newly formed limited
lmblllty company, which succeeded to all the rights, obligations
and liabilities of LFSI. Subsequently, on January '17 2007, the
new entty changed its name to LaBranche Financial Services,
LL.C. LaBranche & Co Inc. is the sole owner of LaBranche
Financial Services, LL.C, which is referred to in this annual
report as “LI'S.”

COMPLETED SENIOR NOTE REPURCHASE

On August 2, 2004, we sold our investment in L:%va Trading Inc.
(“Lava”) as part of the acquisition of Lava by Citigroup Financial
Products, Inc. Upon the closing of the Lava acquisition, which
constituted an “asset sale” under the terms of therlnd‘enrure, we
received $39.0 million in cash. Under the Lava acquisition agree-
ment, additional consideration of approxtimately $9 6 million was
being held in escrow to secure our indemnification obligadons as
a stockholder of Lava. The full amount of this escrow was
released to us on October 31, 2003. An additonal $640,960 was
received by us on or before October 31, 2005 in connection with
the settlement by Lava of tax and insurance (:]alms Under the
terms of the indentre governing our outstandlng 9.5% Senior
Notes due 2009 and our outstanding 11.0% Senior Notes due
2012 (collectively, the “outstanding senior notes™), by the 361st
day following the receipt of these proceeds, we were required w0
offer to purchase outstanding senior notes in an aggregnte princi-
pal amount equal to the after—tax amount of thesé proceeds to the
extent we had not used any portion of such net cash proceeds to
repay any of our secured indebtedness or any indebtedness of our
subsidiaries or to acquire “replacement assets.” Therefore on
October 24, 2006, we commenced an offer to purchase outstand-
ing senior notes in the aggregate principal amuunt of up w $6.6
mllhon. This excess proceeds offer expired on 1 ovember 22,
2006, with $26,000 principal amount of outstand;ng senior notes
having been tendered. Following the closing of this transaction




and the closings of other previous offers to repurchase with
immaterial tenders of senior notes, approximately $199.8 million
aggregate principal amount of our Senior Notes due 2009

remained outstznding and approximately $260.0 million aggre-
gate principal amount of our Senior Notes due 2012 remained
outstanding.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS .
SPECIALIST AND MARKET-MAKING SEGMENT OPERATING RESULTS

2006 vs. 2005 2004 vs. 2005 -

For the Years Ended December 31, Percentage Percentage
(000’ omitred) 2006 2005 2004 . Change Change
Revenues:
Net gain on principal transactions $180,850 $194,432 $182,535 (7.0)% 6.5%
Commissions 35,896 42,260 48,781 (15.1) (13.3)
Stock borrow interest 157,588 33,039 3,838 377.0 760.8
Other interest 19,834 13,643 4,838 45.4 . 182.0 .
Ner gain on NYX transaction 220,260 — — 100.0 —
Other 286 123 5,031 130.8 (97.5)
Total segment revenues 614,714 283,527 245,023 116.8 - 15.7
Interest expense 186,995 37,466 9,844 399.1 280.6 .
Revenues, net of interest expense 427,719 246,061 235,179 73.8 4.6
Operating expenses 146,375 143,481 138,954 2.0 33
Goodwill impairment — . —_ 37,600 — (100.0)
Exchange memberships impairment — — 16,300 — {(100.0)
Pre-tax income (loss) $281,344 $102,580 $ 42,323 174.3 - 142.4

Revenues from our Specialist and Market-Making segment con-
sist primarily of net gain earned from principal transactions in
securities for which we act as specialist and interest income. Net
gain on principal transactions represents trading gains net of
trading losses and SEC transaction fces, where applicable, and are
earned by us when we act as principal buying and selling our spe-
cialist stocks, rights, options, ETFs and futures. Also included in
net gain on principal ransactions are net gains and losses result-
ing from our marker-making activities in ETFs, optons and
futures, the net gains and losses resulting from trading of foreign
currencies, futures and equities underlying the rights; ETFs and
options for which we act as specialist, and accrued dividends
receivable or payable on our equity positions. Thesé revenues are
primarily affected by changes in share volume traded and fluctua-
tions in prices of stocks, rights, options, ETFs and futures in
which we are the specialist or in which we make a market.

Commissions revenue generated by ocur Specialist and Marker-
Making segment consists primarily of fees earned when our spe-
cialists act as agents by executing limit orders on behalf of bro-
kers, professional traders and broker dealers after a specified peri-
od of dme; we do not earn commissions when we match market
orders or when we act as a market-maker. Beginning December
2006 the NYSE implernented a program of revenue sharing
under which the NYSE will distribute a fixed rebate income sup-
port payment in the amount of approximately $33.0 million
among the NYSE specialist firms for a six month transition peri- |
od commencing December 1, 2006, LaBranche & Co. LLC will

receive approximately $2.04 million per month through May
2007 under this program. Commencing June I, 2007, the NYSE
revenue sharing program will be based on specialist firm per-
formance. There will be a base rebate on every trade a specialist
enters on the NYSE in the amount of $0.000275 per share trad-
ed. Specialist firms will receive an additional rebate each month
relating to their absolute market share in each of their specialist
stocks if that market share exceeds 35%. The specialist may be
entitled to an additional rebate of between $0.00014 o $0.00016
per share for certain trades that exceed to-be-determined market
share thresholds.

Interest revenue generated by our Specialist and Market-Making
segment consists primarily of interest earned in securities lending
transactions and inventory financing in connection with our trad-
ing in options, futures and ETFs.

Revenues, net of interest expense, at our Specialist and Market-
Making segiment is calculated after netting revenues by the inter-
est expense related to those operations and the interest expense
related to our public debt. The interest expense related to our
Specialist and Marker-Making segment is primarily the result of
inventory financing costs relating o positons taken in connec-
don with our opdons, futures and ETFs specialist and market-
making operations and interest on subordinated indebtedness that
has been approved by the NYSE for inclusion in the net capital
of our LaBranche & Co. LL.C subsidiary.




Key Metrics of our Specialist and Market-Making Activities
When assessing the performance and financial results of a specif-
ic period, management examines certain metrics to ascertain their

“are as follows:

impact on cash equity specialist financial results. Son{e of the key
metrics that we review, and their values for 2006, 2005 and 2004,

2006 vs. 2005| 2004 vs, 2005

Percentage Percentage

{000 omitred) - 2006 2005 2004 Change Change
NYSE average daily share volume (in millions) 1,826.7 1,647.1 1,456.7 10.9% 13.1%
I.AB share volume on the NYSE (in billions} 105.9 101.4 96.1 ' 4.4 . 5.5
LAB dollar value on the NYSE (in'billions) $3,7783 $3,355.3 $2,819.1 i2.6 19.0
Share volume of principal shares traded (in billions) 17.5 19.6 223 (10.7) (12.1)
Dollar value of principal shares traded (in billions) $ 6574 § 6925 $ 6827 5.1) 1.4
Average closing price of the CBOE Volatility Index 12.8 12.8 15.5 0.0 (17.4)
Program trading as a percentage of NYSE

average daily share volume 30.6 30.3 255 0.1 18.8
Number of Specialist ETFs 75 52 18 44.2 188.9
Number of Specialist Options 753 617 321 18.1 92.2

- t

. Generally, an increase in the average daily share volume on the
NYSE, an increase in volatlity (as ineasured by the average clos-
ing price of the CBOE’s Volatility Index®, or the “VIX™), an
increase in the dollar value and share volume of our principal
shares or a decrease in program trading enables us to increase
our level of principal participation and thus our ability to realize
net gain on principal transactions. While we monitor these met-
rics each period, they are not the sole indicators or factors in any
given period that determine our level of revenues, profitability or
overall performance. Other factors; such as extreme price move-
ments, unanticipated company news and events and other uncer-
tainties may influence our financial performance either positively
or negatively.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006 COMPARED TO
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

The decline in net gain on principal transactions in our Specialist
and Market-Making segment was attributable primarily to our
cash equity specialist operations. The decrease was due to a decline
in principal shares traded, as well as market volatility, as measured
by the average closing price of the VIX, which was unchanged year
over vear. Other factors that reduccd our opportunity to partei-
pate was the continuing rise in program trading as a percentage of
NYSE average daily share volume and decreases in NYSE average
daily share volume and dollar value of principal shares traded of
stocks for which we are the equity specialist.

The increase in stock borrow interest revenue gencrated by our
Specialist and Market-Making segment consists primarily of
interest earned in securities lending transactions and inventory
financing in connection with our tr:ading in optons, futures and
ETFs.

Other interest revenues increased due to the higher average
interest rate yields earned on our investment of excess cash.
Interest expense in our Specialist and Market-Making segment

{

increased primarily as a result of increased inventory financing
costs relating to the growth and expansion of trading activity in
our options, futures and ETFs specialist and mnrket—makmg
operations. Inventory financing costs increased from $36.6 mil-
lien in 2005 to $186.7 million in 2006. While mtlcrcst expense
increased to 30.4% of total segment revenues in 2()06 from
13.2% in 2003, stock borrow interest income incteased to 25.6%
of total segment revenues in 2006 from 11.7% for 2005. Both-
stock borrow rebate and margin interest expense Ishou]d be con-
sidered as components in the overall computatmn of net trading
revenue in the Specialist and Market-Making segment.

Our Specmlmt and Market-Making segment rc1lued a 5120.1
million gain from the exchange of 36 NYSE meml)ershlps in the
NYSE/Archipelago merger (another three meml)crshlps were
held by our Execution and Clearing segment). We valued the 2.9
million shares of NYX stock received in exchnngcl, for those 36
NYSE memberships at fair value, which was ds_emed to be the
value of the shares on the first day of trading of NYX stock, or
$67.00 per share, minus a 10% valuation allowam!:t_ due to the
restrictions on transfer applicable to the shares. Since the con-
summation of the NYSE/Archipelago merger, we account for the
investrent in the NYX stock held by our Specmllst and Market-
Making segment at market value minus the valuation discount
attributable to the transfer restrictions (at December 31, 2006,
the discount was 7%). At December 31, 2006, the NYSE c]osmg
market price for the NYX stock was $97.20 per share as com-
pared to $67.00 per share at the date of the NYQPJArchlpelngo
merger. Thus, the aggregate gain, both realized aln(l unrealized,
in our Specialist and Market-Making segment wuh respect to the
NYSE/Archipelago merger for 2006 was $220.3 million, includ-
ing the dividend of $13.3 million we received in r.'onnectlon with
our NYSE memberships prior to the ‘\TYSE/Archipelago merger.

For a discussion of operating expenses see “Our (perating
Expenses” below.




YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005 COMPARED TO
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

The increase in net gain on principal transactions is attributable
primarily to our options, futures and ETFs specialist operadons,
with respect to which trading revenue increased by approximately
82% from 2004 to 2005. This revenue growth was the result of
an increase’in the number of products traded, market-maker pro-
fessionals and exchanges on which we trade 6ur derivative prod-
ucts. This was offset by a continued decrease in our cash equity
specialist operations, in which trading revenue decreased by
approximately 10% from 2004 to 2005. This decrease was at a
lower rate than in 2004, but was similarly due to a decline in
principal shares traded as well as the continued decline in market
volatility, as measured by the average closing price of the VIX.
Another factor that reduced the opportunity for our cash equity
specialists to participate was the continuing rise in program wrad-
ing as a percentage of NYSE average daily share volume.
Program trading involves reducing large share orders into many
smaller orders, resulting in the orders being matched electroni- .
cally. These factors offset the benefit from the increases in NYSE
average daily share volume and share volume and dollar value
traded for equity securities in which we are the specialist. We
believe that market volatility declined as the level of mutual
funds’ participation in the market declined.

Interest revenue earned by our Specialist and Market-Making
segment was higher primarily due to an increase in securities
lending transactions, resulting from increased trading activity in
our options, futures and ETFs specialist and market-making
operations. ‘

Other revenue earned by our Specialist and Market-Making
segment was lower primarily due to decreased propriewary

trading gains.

Interest expense in our Specialist and Market-Making segment
increased primarily as a result of increased inventory financing
costs relating to the growth and expansion of trading activity in
our opdons, futures and ETFs specialist and market-making
operations. Inventory financing costs increased from $8.4 million .
in 2004 to $36.6 million in 2005. While interest expense
increased to 13.2% of total segment revenues in 2005 from 4.0%
in 2004, stock borrow interest income increased to 11.7% of
total segment revenues in 2005 from 1.6% for 2004. Both stock
borrow rebate and margin interest expense should be considered
as components in the overall computation of net trading revenue
in the Specialist and Market-Making segment.

For a discussion of operating expenses see “Our Operatdng
Expenses” below.

LN

EXECUTION AND CLEARING SEGMENT OPERATING RESULTS

For the Years Ended December 31,

2006 vs. 2005 2004 vs. 2005

Percentage  Percentage
(000’ omitted) 2006 2005 2004 Change Change
Revenues: .
Commissions $33,919 . 541,729 $47,263 (18.7)% (11.7)%
Stock borrow interest 493 355 109 389 2257
Other interest 1,308 471 279 177.7 68.8
Net gain on NYX transaction 18,355 — — 100.0 - —
Other 174 118 365 47.5 (67.7)
"Total segment revenues 54,249 42,673 48,016 27.1 (1.1}
Interest expense . 525 311 158 68.8 96.8
Revenues, net of interest expense 53,724 42,362 47,858 26.8 (11.5)
Operating expenses 38,271 45,311 52,669 (15.5) (14.0)
Exchange memberships impairment — — 2,027 (100.0) (100.0)
Pre-tax income {loss) $(2,949) $(6,838) 424.0 56.4

$15,453

Our Execution and Clearing segment’s commissions revenue
includes fees charged to customers for execution, clearance and
direct-access floor brokerage actvities.

QOur Execution and Clearing segment’s other revenues consist of
interest income, proprietary trading net gains or losses and fees
charged to customers for use of our proprietary front-end order
execution system.

Revenues, net of interest expense, at our Execution and Clearing
segment is calculated after netting revenues by the interest
expense incurred in those operations, which consists of customers’

free credit balances, stock-loan interest and bank loans.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006 COMPARED TO
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

Comrmission revenue from our Execudon and Clearing segment
decreased as a resuit of 2 continued decline in direct-access floor
broker order flow and reduced trade volume from execution and
clearing customers. Interest income increased as a result of addi-
tional amounts invested in T-bills, an increase in stock borrow
interest income and a general increase in interest rates. Other
revenue from our Execution and Clearing Segment remained rel-
atively flat. :




Our Execution and Clearing sengent realized a $10.0 million
gain from the exchange of three NYSE memberships in the
NYSE/Archipelago merger (36 membcrsh1ps were held by our
Specialist and Market-Making segment). We valued the 0.2 mil-
lion shares of NYX stock received in exchange for those three
NYSE memberships at fair value, whlch was deemed to be the
value of the shares on the first day\of trading of NYX stock, or
$67.00 per share, minus a 10% valuauon allowance due to the
restrictions on transfer applicable to the shares. Since the con-
summation of the NYSE/Archlpelago merger, we account for
our investment in the NYX stock held by our Execution and
Clearing segment at market value 'mmus the valuation discount
attributable to the transfer resmctlons {(at December 31, 2006,
the discount was 7%). At December 31, 2006, the NYSE closing
market price for the NYX stock was $97 20 per share as com-
pared to $67.00 per share at the date of the NYSE/Archipelago
merger. Thus, our aggregate gmnt both realized and unrealized,
in our Execution and Clearing segment with respect to the
NYSE/Archipelago merger for 2006 was $18.3 million, including
the dividend of $1.1 million we reeelved in connection with our
NYSE memberships prior to the I;\TYSE/ArchipelagO merger.

OTHER SEGMENT OPERATING RESULTS

Tnterest expense at our Execution and Clearing segment
remained relatively flat. :

Fora d1sc:usston of operating expenses see “Our Operatmg
Expenses” below,

i

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005 COMPARED TO
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2004 .|
Commission revenue from our Executon and Clearing segment
decreased as a result of a decline in direct-access floor broker
order flow and reduced trade volume from c]carance customers.
"This decline was partially offset by an increase in revenues from
our IEG group as a result of general growth and expansmn of its
customer base. Interest income increased as a result of additional
amounts invested in T-bills and an increase in mtercsr rates. In
addition, stock borrow income increased. Other revenue from

|
our Execution and C]eanng Segment remained relatively fla.
i

Interest expense at our Execution and Clearing segiment

remained relatively flat. .
For a discussion of operating expenses see “Our Operating
Expenses” below. !

‘ . 2006 vs. 2005 2004% 2005
For the Years Ended December 31, Percentage Percentage
(000’ omitted) 2006 2005 2004 Change | Change
Revenues: !
Interest ‘ $ 4954 § 3,145 $ 1,313 57.5% i 139.6% -
Other . 77. 10,844 24,697 (99.3) (56.0)
Total segment revenues 5,031 13,989 26,010 (64.0) ‘ (46.1}
Interest expense 52,977 51,726 53,788 2.4 (3.8)
Revenues, net of interest expense (47,946) (37,737 (27,778) (27.1) (35.8) .
Operating expenses ' 11,838 10,789 14,148 9.7 (23.7)
Debrt repurchase premium | ) — — 49,029 — ! (100.0)
Pre-tax loss | $(59,784) $(48,526) $(90,955) (232) . 6.6

The portion of our revenues thfnt 1s not generated from our two
principal business segments conqlsr_s primarily of unrealized gains
or losses on our non-marketable investments and interest income
from short-term investments of our excess cash.

Revenues, net of interest expense, at our Other segment is calcu-
lated after netting revenues by the interest expense related to our
public debt and interest accrued on reserves.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3& 2006 COMPARED TO
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2005

Interest revenue increased prlmanly due to higher rates on our
short-term investments. Other revenues decreased primarily due
to the fact that we did not realize a gain in 2006 from the final
installment (due to the release of an escrow) in QOctober 2005 of
$9.6 million from the sale of our investment in Lava.

i

Interest expense in our Other segment, 1ncreased| to $52.9 million
in 2006 from $51.7 in 2006, primarily due an mcrease in interest
accrued on contingent tax reserves.]

i
For a discussion of operating expenses see “Our Operatmg
Expenses” below.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005 COMPARED TO
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 - |

Interest revenue increased primarily due to higher rates on our
short-term investments. Other revenues decreased primarily as a
result of the smaller realized gain from the final t'nstallment (due
to the release of an escrow) in October 2005 of 9.6 ml!hon from
the sale of our investment in Lava versus the $24.9 million real-
ized gain in 2004 in connection with the disposition of our
investment in Lava.




Interest expense in our Other segment decreased to $51.7 million

in 2005 from $53.8 million in 2004, primarily due tolong-term
debt repayments on maturity.

For a further discussion of operating expenses, see,“Our
Operating Expenses” below.

OUR OPERATING EXPENSES
2006 vs. 2005 2004 vs. 2005
For the Years Ended December 31, Percentage  Percentage
(000s omitted) 2006 2005 2004 Change Change
Expenses:
Employee compensation and related benefits $ 88,370 $103,531 $99,310 (14.6)% 4.3%
Extchange, clearing and brokerage fees 45,711 40,664 39,010 12.4 4.2
Lease of exchange memberships 4,791 3,979 15,565 20.4 74.9)
Goodwill impairment —_ — 37,600 — (100.0)
Exchange memberships impairment — — 18,327 - (100.0)
Debt repurchase premium — — 49,029 — . (100.0)
Other operadng expenses 57,613 51,407 51,886 121 0.9)
Toral erxpenses before provision {(benefit) ‘
for income taxes 196,485 169,581 310,727 (1.6) (35.8)
Provision (benefit) for income taxes $100,208 $ 13,584 $(12,045) 637.7 212.8

Our Specialist and-Marker-Making segment’s employee compen-
sation and related benefits expense consists of salaries, wages and
incentive compensation paid to our traders and related support
staff. The employee compensation and benefits expense related
to our Execution and Clearing segment consists of salaries, wages
and incentive compensation paid to our executton and clearing
professionals, as well as compensation based on commissions
earned by various trading professionals. Incentive compensation
may include cash compensation and stock-based compensation
paid or granted to managing directors, trading professionals and
other employees based on our results, their contributions to our
business and other factors.

Exchange, clearing and brokerage fees expense at our Specialist
and Market-Making segment consists primarily of fees paid by us
to the NYSE, AMEX, other exchanges, the Depository Trust
Clearing Corporation (*DTCC”) and to third party execution
and clearing companies. The fees paid by us to these enttes are
primarily based on the volume of transactions executed by us as
principal and as agent, a fee based on exchange seat/trading
license use, an allocation fee requiring specialist firms to share
the cost of newly allocated listings, technology fees, a flat annual
fee and execution and clearing fees, These fees are expected to
decline in 2007 based on the new fee structure at the NYSE. Our
Execution and Clearing seginent’s exchange, clearing and broker-
age fees expense consists of floor brokerage fees paid to direct-
access floor brokers and fees paid to various exchanges.

Other operating expenses primarily are comprised of occupancy
costs, such as office space and equipment leases and utilities,
communications costs, professional, legal and consulting fees and
restructuring costs.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006 COMPARED TQ
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

While consolidated employee compensation and related benefits
expense declined in 2006 compared to 2005, there were material
changes within the components of employee compensation and
benefits expense in each of our business segments year over year.
The main cause of these changes was the decrease in incentive
compensation, salaries and related benefits in connection with
our specialist and market-making operations resuldng from
decreased profitability and declines in the number of personnel.
The sadisfaction and payment of a retention bonus plan kability,
and the December 2003 termination of a deferred compensation
plan, both related to a prior acquisition, contributed to the
decline in employee compensation in 2006. Salaries and incentive
compensation in-our Execution and Clearing segment declined
due to a decline in trading and support personnel. Employee
compensation and related benefits decreased to 20.4% of rev-
emues, net of interest expense, in 2006 from 41.3% in 2005.

Exchange, clearing and brokerage fees increased primarily due to
increased trading activity in our options, futures and ETFs spe-
cialist and market-making operations, Pardally offsetting the
increase was a decrease in exchange, clearing and brokerage fees
at our Execution and Clearing segment related to lower revenues
from direct-access floor brokers. Exchange, clearing and broker-
age fees declined to 10.6% of revenues, net of interest expense, in
2006 froim 16.2% in 2005.

Lease of exchange memberships increased as a result of the num-
ber of trading licenses we obtined since we no longer own 39
NYSE memberships following the NYSE/Archipelago merger.,
Lease of exchange memberships expense decreased to 1.1% of
revenues, net of interest expense, in 2006 from 1.6% for the
same period in 2005,




Other operating expenscs increased slightly in 2006 compared to
2005 due to an increase in occupancy expense in connection with
our move to new space in New York and the overlap of rent in
the office space we rented prior to our move and in connection
with the reduction of our headcount by 126 positions due to
automation in the NYSEs HYBRID market. As a result of this
restructuring, we incurred addmongl compensation expense and
related benefits of $3.7 million in connection with severance and
supplemental unemployment compensation paid.

SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (“SFAS
No. 142”) requires entities to test goodwill for possible impair-
ment on an annual basis, or more frequently, if certain events and
circumstances exist, We tested our good“dll for impairment at
December 31, 2006, per the annual testing requirement, and
noted no further impairment of this asset at that date. For a more
complete description of our methodology in evaluating the rea-
sonableness of the carrving value of our goodwill, please see “—
Critical Accounting Estimates,”

Our expense for income taxes lncrc1sed in 2006 to $100.2 mil-
lion, versus'a tax expense of $13.6 mlillon in 2005. Qur effective
tax rate rose to 42.3% in 2006 from 26.6% in 2005. 1n 2006, the
effective tax rate was lower than the statutory rate due to a tax
benefit that resulted from a permanent difference related to divi-
dends. In 2005, the effective rate was lower than the statutory
rate due to significant tax benefits rccogmzcd by a tax rate
change applied to our net deferred tax liability.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005 COMPARED TO
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

While consolidated employee compensation and related benefits
expense increased slightly in 2005 as compared to 2004, there
were material changes within the components of employee com-
pensation and benefits expense in each of our business segiments
year over year. The main cause of these changes was the increase
in incentive compensation, salaries and related benefits in con-
necton with our options, futures :md ETFs specialist and mar-
ket-making operations resulting From increased trading and sup-
port personnel. These increases were partially offsct by decreases
in compensation related to our cash equity specialist activities
due to a reduction in personnel. The satisfaction and payment of
a retention bonus plan liability, and'the December 2005 termina-
tion of a deferred compensation plan, both related to a prior
acquisition, also partially offset the increase in employee com-
pensation, Salaries and incentive compensation at our Execution
and Clearing segment declined due.to a decrease in trading and
support personnel. Employee compensation and related benefits
increased to 41.3% of revenues, net of interest expense, in 2005
from 38.9% in 2004.

Exchange, clearing and brokerage fees increased primarily due to
increased trading activity in cur options, futures and ETFs spe-
cialist and market-making operations. Partially offsctting the
increase was a decrease in exchange, clearing and brokerage fees
at our Execution and Clearing segment related to lower revenues
from direct-access floor brokers. Exchange, clearing and broker-

age fees increased to 16.2% of revenues, net of interest expense,
in 2005 from 15.3% in 2004,
Lease of exchange memberships decreased substantially as a
result of the decline in the average annual lease cost of an NYSE
membership and a decrease in the number of ourjleased NYSLE
memberships. Our average annual lease cost of an NYSE mem-
bership in 2005 was approximately $70,000, as co npa!red to
approximately $235,000 in 2004. Additionally, we Icased on aver-
age approximately 11 fewer NYSE seats in 2005 than we did in
2004. Lease of exchange memberships expense decreased o

1.5% of revenues, net of interest expense, int 2005 from 6.1% for-
the same period in 2004,

[}

Other operating expenses decreased in 2005 as campared to 2004
primarily due to an decrease in legal, audit and other professional
fees incurred primarily in connection with Sfarl)anles-Oxley Act
compliance, as well as fees charged on a committed revolving
credit facility established in the first quarter of 2004, which was
terminated upon the completion of the reﬁnancmlg of our indebt-
edness on May 18, 2004

' SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible :\Ssers” (“S}*AS

No. 142”) requires entities to test goodwill for posmble impair-
ment on an annual basis, or more frequently, if certain events and
circumstances exist. We tested our goodwill for impair;rnem at
December 31, 2005, per the annual testing requirement, and
noted no further impairment of this asset ar that date. In
September 2004, we recorded a goodwill impainn%ant charge of
$37.6 million, all of which was attributable to our Specialist and
Market-Making segment. The impairment ch.lrgc.'r which repre-
setited the excess of the carrying value of our Spedalist and
Market-Making segment’s goodwill over its 1mpl1e‘d fair value, was
necessary to properly reflect the carrying value of our goodwill at
September 30, 2004. We updated our third quarter 2004 goodwill
valuation results at December 31, 2004, per the 'm:nual testing
requirement, and noted no Further impairment of r_hls asset at that
date. For a more complete description of our methodolog\ in
evaluating the reasonableness of the carrying value of our good-
will, please see “—Critical Accounting Estimates.”

We did not record an exchange-membership impairment in
2005. In 2004, however, we recorded an $18.3 mslhon other-
than-temporary impairment charge related to our, N\:SE
exchange memberships. OFf this total, $16.3 million was attributa-
ble to our Specialist and Market-Making 5(:g1m,nrI and $2.0 mil-
lion was attributable to our Execution and Clearing segment.

Our 2004 operating expenses included a $49.0 million charge in
connection with the erurchase of a substandal portion of our
then-outstanding senior notes and senior subordinated notes.
This charge was attributable to 2 consent payment, which was
offered to debt holders who tendered their 2004 Notes and 2007
Notes by April 19, 2004, and a premium for tendering the 2004
Notes and 2007 Notes for purchase prior to their[maturity. No
such expenses were incurred in 2005,




Our expense for income taxes increased in 2005 to $13.6 million,
versus a tax benefit of $12.0 million in 2004, Our effective tax
rate rose 10 26.6% in 2005 from 21.8% in 2004. The 2004 effec-
tive rate was lower than the statutory rate mainly due to the
reduction of non-deductible goodwill impairment limiting the tax
benefit from the loss. In 2005, the effective rate was lower than
the statutory rate due to significant tax benefits recognized by a
tax rate change applied to our net deferred tax liability.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

As of December 31, 2006, we had $5,374.9 million in assets, of
which $599.8 million consisted of cash and short-term invest-
ments, primarily in government obligations maturing within

* three months, cash and securities segregated under federal regu-
ladons and overnight repurchase agreements. To date, we have
financed our operations primarily with retained earnings from
operations and proceeds from our debt and equity offerings. Due

to the nature of the securites business and our role as a specialist,
market-maker and execution agent, the amount of our cash and
short-term investments, as well as operating cash flow, may vary
considerably due to a number of factors, including the dollar
value of our positions as principal, whether we are net buyers or
sellers of securites, thé dollar volume of executions by our cus-
tomers and clearing house requirements, among others. Certain
regulatory requirements constrain the use of a portion of our lig-
uid assets for. financing, investing or operating activities.

Similarly, the nature of our business lines, the capital necessary to
maintain current operatdons and our current funding needs subject
our cash and cash equivalents to different requirements and uses.

As of December 31, 2006, the scheduled maturities of our con-
tractual obligations, without taking inte account any available

roll-over provisions, were as follows:

-, {000% omitted) Total * <1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years >5 Years
Short Term and Long Term Debt* £481,453 821,642 $199,845 s — $259.966
Subordinated Liabilities 9,395 6,395 3,000 S— - —
Operating Lease Obligations 18,818 2,977 5,158 5,134 5,549
Total $509,666 531,014 $208,003 $5,134 $265,515
*Amounts represent aggregate amount to be paid :;r marurity and do not include discounts of appraximately $0.1 million as of December 31, 2006.

The above table includes indebredness with primarily long-term ($ millions} 2006 2005
maturies, the interest and pnnqpal pavments of which h:_;ve a Cash Capital Available: '
significant effect on the cash available to finance our current and R
) . o Stockholders’ equity $ 8747 $ 7335
ture operations. As of December 31, 2006, our most significant o ]
) . . L. Subordinated debt ) 6.4 94
long-term indebtedness was the $199.8 million aggregate princi- ) .
. ! e _ong term debt > | year 459.8 481.4
pal amount of our outstanding senior notes that mature in May Other holding company liabilities 575 356
2009, and the $260.0 million aggregate principal amount of our g companty bl — ’ -
outstanding senior notes that mature in May 2012, Total cash capital available 51,3984 $1,259.9
: 7 Cash Capital Required: a
At December 31, 2006, our net cash capital position was $149.1 Regulatory capital $ 3378 $ 4497
million. Fluctuations in net cash capital are common and are a Working capital 180.5 119.1
function of variability in our total assets, balance sheét composi- Illiquid assets/long-term investments  723.9 582.2
tion and total capital. We attempt to maintain cash capital Subsidiary intercompany . 7.1 20
sources in excess of our aggregate longer-term funding require- ‘ . . -
wents (i.e., positive net cash capital). Over the previous 12 Total Cash Capital Required §1,249.3 §1,153.0
months, our net cash capital has averaged above $100 million. Net Cash Capital $ 1491 $ 106.9

“Cash Capital Available” is mainly comprised of stockholders’
equity, long term deb, subordinated debt and other liabilities of
our parent holding company which, in the aggregate, constitute
the currency used to purchase our assets and provide our work-
ing capital. This amount will principally be affected as debt
matures or is refinanced and as earnings are retained or paid as
dividends. “Cash Capital Required” mainly consists of the assets
used in our businesses. Regulatory capital is defined as capital




required by the SEC and applicable exchanges to be maintained
by broker-dealers. It is principally comprised of cash, net equi-
ties, other invesaments and net recéivables from other broker-
dealers. Working capital constitutes liquid assets provided to our
subsidiaries in excess of the required regulatory capital, Hliquid
assets and long term investments are mainly comprised of
exchange memberships, intangible assets, such as goodwill, trade-
name and stock listing rights, deposits, deferred raxes and non-
marketable investments. “Net Cash Capital” is considered to be

the excess of Cash Capital Available over Cash Capital Required,
or “free cash,” which we can utilize o fund our business needs.
We also monitor alternative funding measures in addition to our
available net cash. The alternative funding measures are signifi-
cant transactions and actions we could take in a short-term ume
frame to generate cash to meet debt maturites or other business
needs. More precisely, as of December 31, 2006, we have identi-
fied the following alternative fundmg measures to support future
debt maturity requirements: .

* Liquidation of net invested capital at certain subsidiaries.
* Reduction of excess capital at LaBranche & Co. LL.C to only
. required net liquid assets (excess NLA dividend)

* Further reduction of NLA requirements by the NYSE and SEC.
¢ Qur restricted NYX shares, as pre:Viously discussed, can be etther
sold or held as good capital as their restrictions are removed.If
the shares are held as good capital, no tax charge is applied and

- cash can be freed from its current use as NLA capital.

LAB LONG TERM DEBT
PRINCIPAL & CALLABLE REPAYMENT SCHEDULE

ALTERNATIVE FUNDING MEASURES

+

$ millions
Net cash capital ) : $ 149.1
Investment in subsidiaries 1715
Further reduction of NLA requirements T74.0
NYX group stock (1) (2) 171.7

Totwl cash available from alternate funding measures  § 566.3

L

{1) Computed on an after-tax basis
{2) Based on NYX price of $97.20 per share on December ’9 2006

In addition to the aliernative funding measures above, we moni-
tor the maturity profile of our unsecured debt to Imjnirnize refi-
nancing risk and we maintain relationships with debt investors
and bank ereditors. Strong reladonships with a diverse base of
creditors and debt investors are erideal to our l]qllndn:y. We also
maintain available sources of short-term funding that exceed
actual utilization, thus allowing us to aceommodate changes in
investor appetite 2nd credit capacity for our debt obligations.

With respect to the management of refinancing rt:;k1 the maturity
pmf le of our long-term debr portfolio is monitored on an ongo-
ing basis and structured within the context of wo 51gn1ﬁcant debt
tranches with a significant spread of years between maturmes
{mid-term and long-term). Thus, we have srrateglcally negotiated
debt terms maturing in 2009 and 2012 for the 51gn1ﬁcant debe
tranches. In addition, the debt tranches have call prousmns
which allow pre-maturity retirements as early as 2007. The debt
tranches have available maturities and calls over the six year peri-
od 2007 through 2012 to allow us maximum flexibility in satisfy-
ing the debt maturities with payments and/or sufficient dme to
refinance the long-term debt as required. The following chart
profiles our long-term debt maturity schedule as of December
31, 2006.

.

($ in Millions)
478.9 ‘
- B Frincipal Repayment(1}
N T3 Callable Opportunity
L 267.1 260.0 260.0 260.0
209.3 i 1998 |
-
. R i
24.6 ' 3.0 :
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Il

2|012

(1) Excludes Extendible Debt of $1.1mm in 2007. Extendible debt is defined as debt instruments with extendible maturity. Unless debe holders instruct the company to
redeem their debt, the earliest maturity date of these instruments is automatically extended. Based on part experience, the majerity of the Company's extendibles are

expected to remain ousstanding bey ond their earliest maturity date.

\




Our outstanding senior notes were issued pursuant to an inden-
ture which includes certain covenants that, among other things,
limit our ability to make certain investments, engage in transac-
tions with stockholders and affiliates, create liens on our assets
and sell assets or engage in mergers and consolidadons, except in
accordance with certain specified conditions. In addigon, our
ability to make so-called “restricted payments,” such as incurring
additional indebtedness {(other than certain “permitted indebted-
ness”), payving dividends, redeeming stock or repurchasing subor-
dinated indebtedness prior to maturity, is limited if our consoli-
dated fixed charge coverage ratio is at or below a threshold of
2.00:1. The “consolidated fixed charge coverage ratio” reflects a
comparison between (1) our consolidated earnings before inter-
est, taxes, depreciation and amortization expenses, or “EBITDA,”
and {2) the sum of our consolidated interest expense and a tax-
effected multiple of any dividend payments with respect to our
preferred stock. As of December 31, 2006, our. consolidated fixed
charge coverage rato, as defined, was 1.60:1, which means we
currently cannot make any “restricted payments,” other than
repurchasing our outstanding senior notes and any “restricted
payments” up to an aggregate of $15.0 million over the life of the
indenture. Even though our fixed charge coverage ratio is below
2.00:1, we are stll in compliance with all our covenants under
the indenwre.

In addition, under the indenture governing our outstanding sen-
ior notes, if, at any dme, our cumulative “restricted payments”
since May 18, 2004 generally are greater than (i) the sum of (A)
50.0% of our cumulative consolidated net income, as defined in
the indenture, since July 1, 2004 (or, if such calculation is a loss,
minus 100.0% of such loss)-and (B} 100.0% of the net cash pro-
ceeds received from any issuance or sale of our capital stock since
July 1, 2004, plus (i) $15.0 million, we will not be entitled to
make a “restricted payment” at such time. As of December 31,
2006, our cumulative consolidated net income since July 1, 2004
was $176.4 million, and we had received approximately $1.4 mil-
lion upon the exercise of options since July 1, 2004. As explained
ahove, however, out “fixed charge coverage ratio” currently is
below 2.00:1 and accordingly, we are unable to make restricted
payments greater than the $15.0 million “basket” described
above. While we have not made any restricted payments since
May 18, 2004, we cannot be sure if, when or to what extent this
covenant will prevent or limit us from making restricted pay-
ments in the future.

The indenture governing our outstanding senior notes permits us
to redeem some or all of the senior notes due 2009 on or after
May 15, 2007 and some or all of the senior notes due 2012 on or
after May 15, 2008 at varying redemption prices, depending on
the date of redemption. In addition, we have the option to
redeem up to 33.0% of the aggregate principal amount of the
senior notes due 2009 at a redemption price of 109.5% and up to
33.0% of the aggregate principal amount of the senior notes due
2012 av a redempdon price of 111.0% using the proceeds of cer-
tain equity offerings which we may complete on or prior to May

15, 2007. Under the terms of the indenture, if we sell substantial-
ly.all our assets or experience specific kinds of changes in control,
we will be required to offer to repurchase outstanding senior
notes, on a pro rata basis, at a price in cash equal to 101.0% of
their principal amount, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any,
to the date of purchase. ‘To the extent we repurchase any out-
standing senior notes in connection with future corporate strate-
gic initiatives, our fixed-term interest payments would be corre-
spondingly reduced.

The remaining $13.6 million aggregate principal amount of sen-
ior subordinated notes due 2007 that we did not repurchase in
connection with our May 2004 debt refinancing will continue to
accrue interest at a rate of 12.0% per annum undl they mature
on March 2, 2007, We intend on repaying the full amount of
principal and interest on these notes at maturity.

As of December 31, 2006, the subordinated indebtedness of
LaBranche & Co. LL.C aggregated $9.4 million. This subordi-
nated debt is comprised of senior subordinated notes and junior
subordinated notes, which mature on various dates between
February 2007 and June 2008 and bear interest at annual rates
ranging from 7.7% to 10.0%. The senior subordinated notes
were originally issued in the aggregate principal amount of $15.0
million, and, in accordance with their terms, $3.0 million in prin-
cipal amount must be repaid on June 3 of cach of 2004, 2005,
2006, 2007 and 2008. LaBranche & Co. LLC repaid $3.0 million
in accordance with these rerms in each of June 2004, 20035 and
2006. LaBranche & Co. LLC mav prepay, at a premium, all or
any part of such senior subordinated notes at any tdme, provided
that the amount prepaid is not less than 5.0% of the aggregate
principal amount of such senior subordinated notes then out-
standing. Upon the occurrence of a change of control,
LaBranche & Co. LLC may, but is not required to, make one
irrevocable separate offer to each holder of the senior subordi-
nated notes to prepay all the senior subordinated notes then held
by that holder. The occurrence of a change of control also con-
stitutes an event of acceleration under the senior subordinated
notes. Qur outstanding junior subordinated notes in the aggre-
gate principal amount of $3.4 million, have automade rollover
provisions, which extend their maturity for an additional year,
unless we provide at least seven months advance notice of our
intention not to renew at maturity. LaBranche & Co. LL.C is
entitled to prepay—with written consent from the NYSE—the
junior suburdinated notes without penalty under the terms of the
agreements relating thereto,

As of December 31, 2006, our outstanding indebtedness included
eight separate note obligations, each in the principal amount of
$1.0 million, which mature in August 2007 and bear interest at
an annual rate of 9.0%.

Below is a table providing future redemption and repayment
opportunities with respect to the above-described debt pursuane
to the terms thereof: ;




Debt Interest Rate

Remaining !

Principal Maturity Date First Call

- May 15, 2008

Senior Notes due 2012 11.0% $260.0 million May 15,2012 first call is at 105.50%®

_ May 15, 2007

Senior Notes due 2009 9.5% $199.8 million May 15,2009  first call is at 104.75%®

. None|- will be paid at

Senior Subordinated Notes 12.0% $13.6 million March 2, 2007 maturity

- None|- will be paid at

Subordinated Notes 9.0% $8.0 million August 7, 2007 " mawrity

None|- will be paid at

Senior Subordinated Notes" 7.69% $6.0 million June 3, 2008 "maturity
|

None - Requires

six-month notce

Subordinated Notes 10.0% S34 million  Automatic Renewal to Juhior redeem

Total

$490.8 million

{1) Of the $6.0 million remaining principal, $3.0 million must be paid in June 2007 {with interest) and the other $3.0 million must be paid in June 2008 {with interest).

{2) The redemption premium is reduced by one-half each subsequent May 15,

On October 24, 2006, pursuant to the terms of the indenture
governing the senior notes, we offered o purchase outstanding
senior notes in the aggregate principal amount of up to $6.6 mil-
lion. This offer expired on November 22, 2006, with $26,000
principal amount of outstanding semor notes having been ten-
dered. Following the closing of this transaction and the’ closings
of ather previous offers to repurchase with immaterial tenders of
senior notes, approximately $199.8 million aggregate principal
amount of our senior notes due 2009 remained outstanding and
approxuuate]y $260.0 million ag,grcgan. principal amount of our
senior notes due 2012 remained outstanding. For a more detiled
description of this transaction, please sce “—Completed Senior
‘Note Repurchase.”

As of December 31, 2005, we owned 39 NYSE memberships,
with a combined value of $58.5 million, out of a total 1,366
NYSE memberships, representng a 2.9% ownership interest in
the NYSE. Upon consummation of the NYSE merger with
Archipelago on March 7, 2006, each NYSE membership became
entitled to receive in exchange for the NYSE membership
$300,000 in cash, plus 80,177 sharés of NYSE Group common

stock. In addition, immediately prior to the consummation of the

NYSEJArchlpelago merger, the NYSE announced the declara-
tion of a “permitted dividend” payable with respect to each
NYSE membership in the amount of approximately $70,570,
which was equivalent to each membership’ pro rata portion of
the NYSE’s “excess cash,” as defined in the NYSE/Archipelago
merger agreement. [n the \W’SE/t\rchipelngo merger, in
exchange for our 39 NYSE membershlps, we received an aggre-
gate of $11.7 million in cash (not mcludmg the permitted divi-
dend) and 3,126,903 shares of NYSE Group cominon stock. We
received the permitted dividend with respect to each of the 39

NYSE memberships on March 14, 2006, and we Irece‘ived the
remaining merger consideration on March 21, 2006,

As a specialist and market-maker, we are l'Equll‘Cd to maintain
certain levels of caplta] and liquid assets as promuig-ated by vari-
ous regulatory agencies which regulate our business. As part of _
our overall risk management procedures (for Furt'her discussion,
refer to Part I, Item 3. “Quantltanvc and Quahtauve Disclosures
about Market Risk"™), we attempt to batance our respon51b111ty as

- specialist, market-maker and broker-dealer with our overall capi- -

tal resources. These requirements restrict our ability to make use
of cash and other liquid assets for corporate acuolns, such as .
repaying our debrt, repurchasing stock or making acqmsmanb

As a broker-dealer, LaBranche & Co. LLC is subject to regulato-
rv requirements intended to ensure the genera] financial sound-
ness and liquidity of broker-dealers and requiring the mainte-
nance of minimum levels of net capital, as deﬁne(ll in SEC Rule
I5¢3-1. LaBranche & Co. LLC is required to mamtam minimum
net capital, as defined, equivalent to the greater 0f$lOO 000 or
1/15 of aggregate indebtedness, as defined. NYSE Ru]e 326(c)

also prohlblts a broker-dealer from fepaying subordinated bor-

_ rowings, paying cash dividends, making loans to any parent, affil-

iates or employees, or otherwise entering into transactions which
would result in a reduction of its toral net capital[to less than
150.0% of its required minimum capital. Moreover, broker-deal-
ers are required to notfy the SEC prior to repaying subordinated
berrowings, paying dividends and making loans to any parent,
aftiliates or employees, or otherwise entering into transactions
which, if executed, would result in a reduction 0f30.0% or more
of their excess net capital {net capital less minimim requirement),
The SEC has the ability to prohibit or restrict such transactions if
the result is deemed detrimental to the financial i 1r1tegr1ty of the



broker-dealer. As of December 3 1, 2006, LaBranche & Co. LL.C%
net capital, as defined, was $365.5 million, which exceeded the
minimum requirements by $364.3 million.

The NYSE generally requires its specialist firms to maintain a
minimum dollar regulatory tapital amount in order to establish
that they can meet, with their own net liquid assets, their posi-
tion requirement. Prior to September 1, 2006, LaBranche & Co.
LLC% and LSPS’ net liquid asset requirements were combined.
The combined requirement was satisfied by LaBranche & Co.
LLL.C’s net liquid assets alone. Subsequent to September 1, 2006,
" each of LaBranche & Co. LLC and LSPS is required to compute
and meet its own requiretnent. As of December 31, 2006,
LaBranche & Co. LLC’s NYSE minimum required dollar
amount of net liquid assets, as defined, was $323.3 million, and
its actual net liquid assets, as defined, were $360.9 million. LSPS’
net liquid assets requirement as of December 31, 2006 is dis-
cussed below. As of December 31, 2005, LaBranche & Co.
LLC’s and LSPS’ combined NYSE minimum required dollar
amount of net liquid assets, as defined was $447.0 million, and its
actual net liquid assers, as defined, were $459.3 million.
LaBranche & Co. LLC thus satisfied its net liquid asset require-
ment as of each of those dates. ’

On July 23, 2006, the SEC approved a reduction of the mini-
mum dollar regulatory capital for a specialist in cash equities and
increased the requirement for a specialist in ETFs. This reduc-
tion is to be effected in four quarterly installments, the first two
of which were on September 1, 2006 and December 1, 2006,
After the first installment, LaBranche & Co. LLC paid to us a
dividend of $49 million, and after the second installment,
LaBranche & Co. LLC paid to vs a dividend of $57 million.
These dividend payments were mainly comprised of the NLA
reduction payments but also included dividends for excess regula-

. tory capital. LaBranche & Co. LLC’ aggregate required mini-
mum NLA will be further reduced in additional installments on
March 1, 2007 and June 1, 2007.

~
The AMEX generally requires its equity specialist firms to main-
tain a cash or liquid asset position equal to the greater of (a) $1.0
million or (b) an amount sufficient to assume a posidon of sixty
trading units of each security in which the equity specialist is reg-
‘istered. As of December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2003,
LaBranche & Co. LLC sadsfied the AMEX equity specialist lig-
uid asset requirements, ’

As a registered broker-dealer and member firm of the NYSE,
LFS is also subject to SEC Rule 15¢3-1, as adopted and adminis-
tered by the SEC and the NYSE. Under the alternative method
permitted by this rule, the minimum required net capital is equal
to the greater of $1.5 million or 2.0% of aggregate debit items,
as defined. As of December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005,
LFS’ net capital, as defined, was $38.3 million and $19.7 million,
respectively, which exceeded minimum requirements by $36.8
million and $18.2 million, respectively.

As a clearing broker-dealer, LFS also is subject to SEC Rule 15¢3- -

3, as adopred and administered by the SEC. As of January 3, 2007,
to comply with its December 31, 2006 requirement, cash and U.S.
Treasury Bills in the amount of $3.7 million were segregated in a
special reserve account for the exclusive benefit of customers, thus
exceeding actual requirements by $1.7 million. As of January 4,
2006, to comply with its December 31, 2005 requirement, cash
and U.S. Treasury Bills in the amount of $1.2 million were segre-
gated in a special reserve account for the exclusive benefit of cus-
tomers, exceeding actual requirements by $1.2 million, In addition,
the Proprietary Accounts of Introducing Brokers (“PAIB")
Calculation is computed in order for correspondent firms to classi-
fy their assets held by LFS as allowable assets in the correspon-
dents’ net capital calculation. As of January 3, 2007, to comply with
LFS’ December 31, 2006 requirement, cash and U.S. Treasury
Bills in the amount of $5.2 million were segregated in a special
reserve account for the exclusive benefit of PAIB custoimers,
exceeding actual requirements by $1.0 million. As of January 4,
2006, to comply with LFSI’s Decemnber 31, 2005 réquirement,
cash and U.S. Treasury Bills in the amount of $5.7 million were
segregated in a special reserve account for the exclusive benefit of
customers, thus exceeding actual requirements by $2.0 million.

As 2 registered broker-dealer and AMEX member firm, LSP is
subject to SEC Rule 15¢3-1, as adopted and administered by the
SEC and the AMEX. LSP is required to maintain minimum net
capital, as defined, equivalent to the greater of $100,000 or 1/15
of aggregate indebtedness, as defined. As of December 31, 2006
and December 31, 2005, LSP’s net capital, as defined, was $68.2
million and $56.8 million, respectvely, which exceeded minimum
requirements by $67.4 million and $35.7 million, respectively.
LSP% aggregate indebtedness to net capital ratio on those dates
was .18 to 1 and .29 1o 1, respectively.

LSPS, as a specialist and member of the NYSE, is subject to the
provisions of SEC Rule 15¢3-1, as adopted and administered by
the SEC and NYSE. L&PS is required to maintain minimum net
capital, as defined, equivalent to the greater of $100,000 or 1/15
of aggregate indebtedness, as defined. As of December 31, 2006
and December 31, 2005, LSPS’ net capital, as defined, was $20.2
million and $10.7 million, respectively, which exceeded the mini-
mum requirements by $20.0 million and $10.6 million, respec-
dvely. LSPS’ agprepate indebtedness to net capital ratio on those
dates was .12 to 1 and .16 to 1, respectvely. As of December 31,
2006, LSPS’ NYSE minimum required dollar amount of ner lig-
nid assets, as defined, was $1:3.5 million, and its actual net liquid
assets, as defined, were $19.8 million. Prior to September 1,
2006, LSPS was not required to perform a separate net liquid
assets calculation because LaBranche & Co. LLC actual net lig-
uid assets exceeded the combined net liquid assets requirement of
LaBranche & Co. LLC and LSPS.

As a registered broker-dealer and AMEX member firm, LSPD is
subject to SEC Rule 15¢3-1, as adopted and administered by the
SEC and AMEX. LSPD is required to maintain minimum net

capital, as defined, equivalent to the greater of $5,000 or 1/15 of




aggregate indebtedness, as defined.'As of December 31, 2006,
LSPD's net capital, as defined, was $3.0 million, which exceeded
its minimum requirements by $3.0 million.
- Failure by any of our broker-dealer subsidiaries to maintain its
required net capital and net liquid assets, where applicable, may
subject it to suspension or revocation of its SEC registraton or
its suspension or expulsion by the NYSE, the AMEX and/or any
other exchange of which it is a rnember firm.

. y . .
As evidenced by the foregoing requiremeni:s our broker-dealer
subsidiaries require a substantial amlount of capital. In particular,
LaBranche & Co. LLC’s net liquid : asset requirement of $323.3
million limits our ability to utilize a:substantial portion of our
liquid assets for other corporate purposes. Although a portion of
the combined net liquid asset requirement of $323.3 million is
met by LaBranche & Co. LLC securities positions, pending
trades and otheér assets associated with our equity specialist activi-
tes, a substantal portion of LaBranche & Co. LLC% cash and
cash equivalents as of December 31; 2006 was used to meet its
net liquid asset requirement.

On March 7, 2007, trading resmcnons with respect to 1,042,301
of our 3,126,903 shares of NYX common stock will lapse. It is
possible that, beginning on or after March 7, 2007, we may use at
least a portion of such 1,042,301 shares of NYX stock to satisfy
our net capital and net liquid assets requlremems at LaBranche

& Co. LLC, subject to required hall‘CUtS In the event we use
those NYX shares to satisfy our requlrements additional cash
that has been used to meet these requirements could be used for
other corporate purposes, mcludmg repurchasing our outstand-
ing senior notes.

As of December 31, 2006, we had a 'mx receivable of $5.4 million
and a tax payable of $10.5 million wnth respect to our 2005 tax
year. The 2006 tax receivable of $5. 4 million included a pending
tax assessment of $2.6 mllllon as of Decernber 31, 2006.

; ; _
Our “Other liabilities” of $15.2 million reflected on the accom- -,

panying 2006 consolidated statement of financial condition are
comprised of legal and tax contingencies pursuant to SFAS §
Such contingencies are considered long term, as there is no pres-
ent obligation to pay such liabilities in the foreseeable future.

We currently anticipate that we will be able to meet our working
capital, regulatory capital and capital: expenditure requrremenr_‘;
through at least the next twelve months.
1

. CREDIT RATINGS
Our outstanding senior notes were originally sold in private sales
to institutional investors on May 18, 2004 and substantially all
these senior notes were subsequent]y, exchanged for substantially
identical senior notes registered under the Securities Act of 1933,
as amended, pursuant to the terms of our May 2004 debt refi- ~
nancing. The senior subordinated notes that remain outstanding

since our May 2004 debt reﬁnancmg, in the aggregate principal
* amount of $13.6 million, are publicly held burt are no longer

- expansion of our business.
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rated. The following table sets forth the credit rariings' on our
registered outstanding senior notes as of December 31, 2006:

|
Standard &

Moody’s
" Investors Service + Poor’s
2009 Senior Notes - Ba2 ' B’

2012 Sentor Notes Ba2 ' B

In August 2005, although Moody’s Investor Services changed its
credit rating of our cutstanding senior notes from|Bal to Ba2, it
improved its outlook to stable due to our high quality balance
sheet and improved liquidity. In September 2005, Standard &
Poors also improved its outlook on our ourstandmg senior notes
to stable, while affirming our B rating, due to our 1|npr0ved debt
service and Hquidity positions. There were no updates to these
credit ratings by either Moody’s or Standard & Poors i in 2006.

CASH FLOWS -
Our cash flows are related primarily to our specialist trading
activities, as well as to our financing activites related to the

_Year Ended December 31, 2006 Qur cash and cash equiva-

lents increased $130.1 million to $557.4 million atithe end of
2006. The increase was primarily the result of the combined
effects of $32.1 million of positive cash flow from tl;am:i.ngs, a
$104.0 million net decrease in working capital applied to bro-
ker/dealer receivables and payables and i investments, a $44.0 mil-
lion decrease in securities purchased under an agreemenr to resell
offset by an aggregate $29.2 million decrease of net other liabili-
ties over other assets, a $17.7 million expenditure f;or capital
agsets and-a $3.0 million repayment of a subordinated debt.

l
Year Ended December 31, 2005 Our cash and cash equiva-
lents decreased $17.1 million to $427.3 million at the end of
2005. The decrease was the result of the combined Lffects ofa
$7.3 million repayment of debt and minority interest obligations,
a $1.3 million expenditure for capital assets and a $l4 6 million
payment of a deferred compensatlon arrangement offsét by $6.0
million of positive net operating activity cash flows.

Year Ended December 31, 2004 Our cash and cash equwn—
lents decreased $47.4 million to $444.4 million at the end of 2004.
The decrease was the result of $125.4 million used in our operat-
ing activities primarily for payment of the $63.5 mll]lon in restitu-
tion and fines in settlement of the prior year’ T VYSE and SEC
specialist i lnvestlgatlon and a $74.0 million increase in repurchase
agreements, This decrease was partially offset by $79.0 million
provided as a result of the refinancing of our indebtedness.

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE
DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Due te regulatory requirements that prescribe communication
barriers between our broker-dealer subsidiaries, welemploy
different compliance risk management procedures at each such
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subsidiary. These risk processes are set forth below:

Our Cash Equity Specialist Risk Management Process
Because our equity specialist activities on the NYSE and AMEX
expose our capital to significant risks, managing these risks is a
constant priority for us. Our central role in the HYBRID market
helps us to manage risks by incorporating up-to-daté market
information in the management of our inventory, subject to our
specialist obligations, We have developed a risk management
process at our LaBranche & Co. LLC subsidiary that is designed
to balance our ability to profit from our specialist acrivities with
our exposure to potental losses and compliance risk. ‘This risk
management process includes parucipation by our corporate
compliance committee, executive operating committee, floor
management committee, post managers, floor captains, specialists
and chief risk officer. These parties’ roles are as follows:

Corporate Comepliance Connnittee. Qur corperate compliance com-
mittee was established in February 2002 and consists of represen-
tatives from executive and senior management, compliance per-
sonnel, including cur on-floor compliance officer, our general

+ counsel, our chief regulatory officer and several additional senior
floor specialists, known as post managers. The role of the corpo-
rate compliance committee is to monitor and report to senior -
management on the statutory and regulatory compliance efforts
of our specialist business. The corporate compliance committee
also advises the compliance department in establishing, reviewing
and revising our policies and procedures governing LaBr:mche &
Co. LLC's regulatory compliance structure.

Executive Operating Committee. Our executive operating com-
mittee is composed of two executive officers. This committee is
responsible for approving all risk management procedures and
trading guidelines for our specialist stocks, after receiving recom-
mendations from our floor management committee. In additon,
our executive operating committee reviews all unusual situations
reported to it by cur floor management committee.

Floor Management Committee. Our NYSE floor management
committee is composed of five post managers, two wheel man-
agers, two floor managers, one SWAT team manager and one
quality assurance manager. This committee is responsible for for-
mulating and overseeing our overall risk management procedures
and trading guidelines for each of our specialist stocks. In deter-
mining these procedures and guidelines, the floor management
committee considers the recommendations of the ﬂoor captains.
The post managers meet with their respecnve floor captains on a
weekly basis to review and, if necessary, revise the risk manage-
ment procedures and trading guidelines for particular specialist
stocks. The wheel managers ensure thar the floor is adequately
staffed at all imes. In additon, post managers, wheel managers
and floor captains are always available on the trading floor to-
review and assist with any unusual trading situations reported by
a floor captain, and the swat-team manager is available o assess
and provide assistance on break-out, or intense, trading situa-
tions. Our floor management committee reports to our executive
operating comrmittee zbout each of these trading sitvatons as

they occur. Qur floor management committee also trains other
specialists and trading assistants on a regular basis on new rules
and/or interpretations from the NYSE with respect to our spe-
cialist obligations and guidelines, with the assistance of our com-
pliance department.

Floor Caprains. We employ eight floor captains who monitor the
activides of our cash equity specialists throughout the wading day
from various positions at our trading posts, The floor caprains
observe trades and constantly review l:radmg activities on a real-
time basis. In addition, the floor captains are readily available o
assist our specialists in determining when to deviate from proce-
dures and guidelines in reacting to any unusual situations or mar-
ket conditions. The floor captains report these uniusual situations
and any deviatons from these procedures and guidelines to their
respective post managers. Floor captains meet with each special-
ist at least once a week to evaluate each specialist’s adherence to
our risk management procedures and trading guidelines, as well
as to review compliance reports generated by the compliance
department in monitoring and reviewing specialist trading activi-
ties. Floor captains also meet to review risk procedures and
guidelines and, if appropriate, make recommendations to the
floor management committee,

Specialists. Our specialists conduct electronic and, at imes, man-
uval auctions of our specialist stocks based upon the conditions of
the marketplace. In doing so, specialists observe our risk manage-

_ment procedures and trading guidelines in tandem with their
_ responsibility to create and maintain a fair and orderly market.

Specialists promptly notify a floor captain of any unusual situa-
tions or market condidons requiring a deviation from our proce-
dures and guidelines.

On-Floor Compliance Officer. We also have an on-floor compli-
ance officer that monitors the specialists’ compliance with NYSE
rules throughout the day on an ad hoc basis. The on-floor com-
pliance officer reports his findings and on general on-floor com--
pliance initiatves on a daily basis to our equity specialist unit's
Chief Compliance Officer and Chief Executive Officer and pro-
vides summary updates of these efforts to the Corporate
Compliance Committee on a monthly basis. Many of our com-
pliance and risk management activities flow from the efforts of
our on-floor compliance initiative.

- Electvonic Exception Reports. We have implemented a system of

electronic rule exception reports at our LaBranche & Co. LLC
subsidiary to monitor our compliance with NYSE and SEC rules.
These reports are generated on a daily basis, from one to three
days after each trading day, and are the result of significant devel-
opment efforts from our technology group, with advice of our
compliance and legal staff. Our compliance staff reviews these
exception reports daily, and in the event an exception is detected,
the exception is researched in-detail by our on-floor compliance
officer or another compliance officer to determine if a compli-
ance issue is found. If a compliance issue is detected, we make an
effort to correct the problem and conduct training of our special-




ists and/or distribute compliance bulletins to ensure our special-
ists understand the rule and processes going forward. All detected
problems are discussed at our monthly compliance committee
meetings. [

. ‘ - | .

We believe that the enhancements we have made to our compli--
ance procedures and guldelmes since 2004, and on a continuous
basis as circumstances warrant, haveumproved our risk manage-

ment pracess. I

Our equity specialist operations on éhe AMEX are conducted by
three equity specialists. We have one post manager on the
AMEX who monitors the trading aeuvntles of the AMEX equity
specialists by observing trades and revnewmg positions on a real-
time basis. As a member of the ﬂoo_r‘ management committee, the
post manager regularly communicates with other members of the
floor management committee regarding any deviations from our
AMEX procedures and guidelines set by our executive operating
committee. We also have an on- ﬂodr compllance officer that
monitors the specialists’ compllance‘wnh AMEX rules through-
out the day on an ad hoc basis. The on-floor compliance officer
reports his findings and on general on-floor compliance initia-
dves on a daily basis to our equity sﬁecialist unit’s Chief
Compliance Officer and Chief Execuuve Officer and provides
summary updates of these efforts 1o the Corporate Compliance
Committee on a monthly basis. Many of our compliance and risk
management activities flow from thc efforts of our on-floor com-
pliance inidative. Our AMEX on- ﬂqor compliance officer also
monitors problems with the AMEXs trading systems, which have
resulted in AMEX inidatives and improvements,

Circuit Breaker Rules. The NYSE ar‘ld AMEX have instituted cer-
tain circuit breaker rules intended to halt trading in all
NYSE/AMEX listed stocks in the evenl: of a severe market
decline. The circuit breaker rules i nnpose temporary halts in trad-
ing when the Dow Jones Industrial Average drops a certain num-
ber of points. Current circuit breaker levels are set quarterly-at
10, 20 and 30 percent of the Dow Jones Industrial Average clos-
ing values of the previous month, rounded to the nearest 50
points. These rules provide investor‘s extra time to respond to
severe market declines and provide 1 Us an additional opportunity

Lo assure compliance with our risk management procedures.

Equity Market Financial Risk VVe have developed a risk man-
agement process, which is intended to balance our ability to prof-
it from our equity specmhst actlvn:le‘s with our exposure to poten-
dal losses. We have invested substantla] capltal along with the
NYSE, in real-time, on-line systems which give our manage-
ment, including our chief risk ofﬁcer access to specific trading
information during the trading day, 1ncludmg our aggregate long
and short positions and our capital aj.nd profit-and-loss informa-
ton on an aggregate or per issue basis. Subject to the specialist’s
obligation to maintain a fair and orderly market and to applicable
regulatory requirements, we constantly seek to manage our trad-

ing positions relative to existing market conditions.
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A hlgh concentratdon of equity specialists’ prmmpa] rradmg rev-
enue is generated from its ten and twenty-five most proﬁtable
NYSE specialist stocks. The percentage of our equity speczallst

trading revenue generated from our ten most proﬁmble specialist *

stocks has increased from 13.6% to 19.6% of total|prmc1pal trad-
ing revenue in 2005 and 2006, respectively. The percentage of

our equity specialist trading revenue generated from 0111r twenty-
five most profitable specialist stocks has inereased from 23.8% to
35.3% of total principal trading revenue in 2003 and 2006,
respectively. However, we are not overly reliant ona particular
group of specialist stocks, as the composition of our ten and
twenty-five most profitable specialist stocks changes frequently.
Our equity specialist trading activities are subject toa number of
risks, including risks of price fluctuations, rapid Lh;anges in the
liquidity of markets and foreign exchange risk related to
American Depositary Rece]prs (“ADRs"). In any perlod we may
incur trading losses or gainsin our specialist stocks!for a variety of
reasons, including price fluctuations of our specialist stocks and
fulfillment of our specialist obligations. Quannﬁcaltlon{of such
losses or gains would not be meaningful as standard market stud-
ies do not capture our specialist obligations. From|timé to time,
we may have large position concentrations in securities of a sin-
gle issuer or issuers engaged in a specific industry. In general,
because our inventory of securities is marked-to-markét on a
daily basis, any significant price movement in these securities
could result in an immediate reduction of our revenues and oper-
ating profits. ;

Our Options, Futures and ETFs Specialist and Market-
Making Risk Management Process As specmhsts in options,
ETFs and futures, we have a responsibility to maintain a fair and
orderly market, and trade securities as principal oy ofiboth obli-
gation and inclination. Our optons, ETTs, futures, U.S.
Government obligations and foreign currency specmllst trading
exposes us to certain risks, such as price and i interest rate fluctua-
dons, voladlity risk, credit risk, foreign currency movements and
changes in the liquidity of markets. !

Additionally, as-a market-maker in options, ETFs and futures, we
also from time to time trade as principal. In our market-making
function, we bring immediacy.and liquidity to the markets when
we participate. Our market-making activities expose usl, to certain
risks, including, but nor limited to, price fluctuations and volatility.

Our traders purchase and sell furures options, the stocks under-
lying certain positions, U.S. Government securitics and foreign
currencies in an attempt to hedge market and forelgn currencv
risk. Certain members of management, including gur chief risk
officer, who oversee our options, futures and FTFS specrallst and
market making activities are responsible for managmg;these risks.
These managers utilize a third-party software applleauon to
monitor specialist and market-makmg positions on a real-time
basis. By monitoring actual and theoretical profit and loss,
volatility and other standard risk measures, these i1divliduals seek
to insure that our traders operate within the parameters set by
management. Furthermore, our aggregate risk in Connection
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with our options, futures and ETFs trading is under constant
evaluation by certain members of management and our traders,
and all significant trading strategies and positions are closely
monitored. When an unusual or large position is observed by the

chief risk officer, he communicates the issue with senior manage- -

ment, who communicate with the trader to understand the strat-
egy and risk management behind the trade and, if nleccessary,
determine avenues to mitigate our risk exposure. Qur options,
futures and ETFs trading is executed on national and foreign

~

exchanges. These trades clear through the Options Clearing
Corporadon, the National Securities Clearing Corporadon or
the applicable exchange clearing organization, thereby reducing
potential credit risk.

The following chart illustrates how specified movements in the
underlying securities prices of the options, futires and ETFs in
our specialist and market-making portfolios would have impacted
profits and losses:

(000’ omitted) Profit or (Loss) if the underlying securities move:

-15.0% -5.0% 0% +5.0% +15.0%
Portfolio as of: | -
March 31, 2006 $(13,803) $ 5760 $ @29 $ 1,734 $ 512
June 30, 2006 $(31,187) $(17,747) $ 50 $23,486 $55,548
September 30, 2006 5 8256 $ 4,089 § 17 $ 114 $ (801
December 31, 2006 $ 2,121 $ 614 $ Qo § 8,086 $28,799

The modeling of the risk characteristics of our trading positions
involves a number of assumptions and approximations. While
management believes that these assumptions and approximations
are reasonable, there is no standard methodology for estimating
this risk, and different methodelogies would produce materially
different estimates. The zero percent change column represents

the profit or loss our options, futures and E'TFs specialist opera- -

tions would experience on a daily basis if the relevant market
remained unchanged.

Foreign Currency Risk & Interest Rate Risk In connection
with the trading of U.S.-registered shares of foreign issuers in
connection with our cash equity specialist operations, we are
exposed to varying degrees of foreign currency nisk. The pricing
of these securities is based on the value of the ordinary securities
as denominated in their local currencies. Thus, a change in a

foreign currency rate relative to the U.S. doliar will resultin a
change in the value of U.S.-registered shares in which we are
the specialist.

Our ETF specialists and market-makers trade internadonal ETFs
that are denominated and settled in U.S. dollars, but the pricing
of these ETTFs is also affected by changes in the relevant foreign
currency rates, We, therefore, hold various foreign currencies in
order to lessen the risks posed by changing foreign currency rates.

" Tn addition, LSP trades derivatives denominated in foreign cur- -

rencies, which creates exposure to foreign currency risk. .

_ The following chart illustrates how the specified movements in.

foreign currencies relative to the U.S. dollar to which cur spé-
cialist and market-making activities are expased would have

- impacted our profits and losses:

Profit or (Loss) if the foreign currencies
"~ relative to the U.S. dollar move:

I15.0% .

(000 omitted) -5.0% +5.0% +15.0%
Portfolio as of: ‘

March 31, 2006 $ 412y S (804 $ 804 $ 2412
June 30, 2006 $  (500) $ (167) $ 167 $ 500
Septernber 30, 2006 $ (3,816) $(1,272) $ 1,272 $ 3,816
December 31, 2006 $ (962 § G20 $ 320 5 962

The information in the above table is based on certain assump-
tions and it does not fully represent the profit and loss exposure
to changes in security prices, volatility, interest rates and other
related factors.

As specialists and market makers in options, ETFs and futures,
we generally maineain large specialist and market maker posi-
." tons. Historically, we have been operating in a low interest rate

market. Increasing or high interest rates and or widening eredit
spreads may create a less favorable operating environment for
this line of business. ' ’

Execution and Clearing Risk Management Process In con-
nection with our specialist and market-making activities, we are
engaged in various securities trading and lending activities and
assume positions in stocks, rights, options, ETFs, U.S.




Government securities, futures and foreign currencies for which
we are exposed to credit risk assocmted with the nonperformance
of counterpartes in fulfilling their c?nt:ractua] obligations pur-
suant to these securites transacuons We are also exposed to mar-
ket risk associated with the sale of secuntlcs not yet purchased,
which can be directly impacted by volaule trading on the NYSE,
AMEX and other exchanges. Addmona]ly in the event of nonper-
formance and unfavorable market prlcc movements, we may be
required to purchase or sell financial instruments at a loss.
. i
Our execution and clearing activities require that we execute
transactions in accordance with customer instructions and accu-
rately record and process the resu]tihg transactions. Any failure,
"delay or error in executing, recordit{g and processing transactons,
whether due to human error or fallure of our informaton or com-
munication systems, could cause subsmnual losses for brokers,
' customers and/or us and could subject us to claims for losses.
|
Clearing activities include settling each transaction with both the
contra broker and the customer. In connection with our institu-
tional and direct access floor brokehage activities, a transaction is
settled either when the customer pa‘vs for securities purchased
and takes delivery, or delivers securmes sold for payment.
Sertling transactions for retail customers and professional
investors involves financing the traﬂsacnon until the customer
makes payment or, for margin accounts, advancing credit to the
customer within regulatory and mtémal guidelines, Clearing
direct access brokers’ transactions includes guaranteeing their
transactions to the contra broker ou the exchange floor.
|
These cleanng activities may EXPOSE U [0 off-balance sheet risk
in'the event customers or brokers are " unable to fulfill their con-
tractual obligations and it is necessary to purchase or sell securities
at a'loss. For margin transactions, we may be exposed to off-bal-
ance sheet risk in the event margin :“cqulremcnts are not sufficient
to fully cover losses that customers may incur in their accounts.
The amount of risk related to our e‘xecution and clearance activi-
des is linked to the size of the tmnsactlon market volatility and
the creditworthiness of customers and brokers. Our largest trans-
actons involve those for 1nst1tutlonal and direct access floor bro-’

kerage customers.

We systematically monitor our open transaction risk in connection
with our execution and clearing activities, starting when the trans-
action occurs and contmumg until the designated settlement date.
"Transactions that remain unsettled after settlement date are scruti-
nized and necessary action to reducé risk is taken. Credit risk that
could result from contra brokers defau]ung is minimized since

much of the settlement risk for trangactions with brokers is essen-

dally ransferred to the Nadonal Stock Clearing Corporation. The -

credit risk associated w1th mstltuuonal and direct access clearing-
customers is minimized Since these customers have been qualified
by the Depository Trust Company (“DTC”) or the DTC partci-
pants or have met the prime broker qualification standards at other
brokerage firms. Before conducting business with a prospective

customer, senior management that oversees our executon and
clearing operations, in conjunction with the related comphance
department, reviews the prospective customer’s experience in the
securities industry, financial condition and personaﬂ background
including 2 background check with a risk reportmgi agency For
retail customers and professional inivestors, we seealci to control the
risks associated with customer actvities by requiring customers to
maintain margin collateral in comphance with varlous regulatory
and internal guidelines. We monitor margin levels dally pursuant
to such guidelines and require ‘customers to deposit addmonal col-
lateral or reduce positions when necessary. |
Operational Risk Operational risk relates to the risk hf loss from
external events, and from failures in internal proceslses or informa-
tion systems. In each of our business segments, we rely heawly on
our information systems in managing our risk. Accordmgly, work-
ing in conjunctdon with the NYSE, we have made significant
investments in our trade procéssing and execution §ystéms. Our

- use of, and dependence on, technology has allowed us to sustain

our growth over the past several years. Managemerltt members and
tloor captains at our NYSE and AMEX equity spcaahst operations
must constantly monitor our positions and transactions in order to
mitigate our risks and {dentfy troublesome trends éhould they
occur. The substandal capltal we have invested, along with the
NYSE, in real-time, on-line systems affords management instant
access to specific trading information at any time d.ll'll’lg the trad-
ing day, including: ‘
* our aggregate long and short positions; 1 ‘
¢ the various positions of each of our trading professionals;
* our overall position in a particular stock; and -
» capital and profit-and-lass information on an aggreéate, per
specialist or per issue basis. i

Our information systems send and receive data from the NYSE
and AMEX through dedicated data feeds. The \T\SE ‘supplies us
with specialist position reporting system termmals both on the
trading floor and in our offices. These terminals allow us to
monitor our NYSE specialist trading profits and losses, as well as
our positions. For our AMEX equity specialist operations, our
in-house technology staff has developed applications to monitor
our current positions and profits and losses. Our options, futures
and E'TFs specialist and market-making operations utilize a
third-party software application to monitor our positions and
profits and losses on a real-time basis. i

‘We have developed and implemented a business conti:nuity plan,

which includes a comprehensive disaster recovery;plan. We have

back-up disaster recovery centers in New York an

Legal and Regulatory Risk Substantal legal lia
nificant regulatory acdon against us could have a

d New Jersey.

bility or a sig-
natér'ial adverse

effect on our financial condition or cause significant harm to our
reputation, which in turn could negatively affect our busmcss

prospects.
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Qur registered broker-dealer subsidiaries are subject to certain

regulatory requirenients intended to insure their general financial
soundness and liquidity. These broker-dealers are subject to SEC.

Rules 15¢3-1, 15¢3-3 and other requirements adopted and
administered by both the NYSE and AMEX.

SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The USA PATRIOT Act of 2001 requires U.S. financial
institutions, including banks, broker-dealers, futures commission
merchants and investment companies, to implement policies,
procedures and controls which are reasonably designed to detect
and report instances of money laundering and the financing

of terrorism. We actively monitor and update our anti-money
laundering practices.

Selected Quarterly Financial Data {unaudited) The following represents the Company’s unaudited quarterly results for fiscal 2006
and fiscal 2005. These quarterly results were prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and reflect all
adjustnents that are, in the opinion of management, necessary for a fair statement of the results and which are of a normal recurring

nature. Due to rounding of quarterly results, total amounts for each fiscal year may differ immaterially from the annual results report-

.ed in “—Financial Statements” under this item,

2006 Fiscal Quarter :

{000’ omitred, except per share data) First Second Third Fourth
Total revenues, net of interest expense $256,483 $ (2,732) $61,181 $118564
"Total operating expenses 58,672 © 36,878 47,420 53,510
Income (loss) before provision-for income taxes 197,811 (39,610) 13,761 65,054
Provision for income taxes 85,522 (17,222) 5,924 25,984
Net income applicable to common stockholders $112,289 $(22,388) $ 7,837 $ 39,070
Earnings per share: ' .

Basic $ 185 S (037 $0.13 $ 064 .

Diluted 1.83 0.37) 0.13 0.63

2005 Fiscal Quarter
(000 omitted, except per share data) First Second Third Fourth
“Total revenues, net of interest expense $ 50,720 558,964 560,446 $ 80,556
"Total operating expenses 47,008 48,950 49,696 53,927
Income (loss) before minority interest and provision )

{benefit) for income taxes 3,712 10,014 10,750 26,629
Minority interest — — — —
Income (loss} before provision (benefit) for income taxes 3,712 10,014 10,750 26,629
Proviston (benefit} for income taxes 1,466 1,272 1,592 9,254
Net income (loss) 2,246 8,742 9,158" 17,375
Preferred dividends and discount accretion o - — _ —
Net income (loss) applicable to common stockholders $ 2,246 $ 8,742 $ 9,158 ' § 17,375
Earnings (loss) per share: : '

Basic 5 004 $§ 014 § 015 $ 029

Diluted 0.04 0.14 0.15
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CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH
.ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING

AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.

There were no dlsagreements with our auditors on accounting
and financial disclosure matters during the last two fiscal years.

CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
As of the end of the period covered by this report, an evaluation

of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures was

performed under the supervision and with the participadon of
our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer. Based on that evaluation, our Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that

‘these disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the
end of the period covered by this report. In addition, no change
in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in
Rule 13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) -
occurred during the fourth quarter of our fiscal year ended
December 31, 2006 that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to matertally affect, our internal control over financial

reporting.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting and the Report of Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm thereon are set forth in a separate section

beginning on the following page.

t
i
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MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER )
FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management of LaBranche & Co [nc‘., together with its consoli-
dated subsidiaries (the “Company”), i$ responsible for establish-
ing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
rcportmg The Company’s internal Contml over financial report-
ing is a process designed under the supcnlsmn of the Company’s
principal executive and principal financial officers to provide rea-
sonable assurance regarding the rcllablllty of financial reporting
and the preparation of the Companys financial statements for
external reporting purposes in accordance with U.S. generaily
accepted accounting principles. '

As of the end of the Company’s 2006 'fiscal year, management
conducted an assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting based on the framework
established in fiternal Conrrol — Inregrared Framework issued by -
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizadons of the Treadway
Commission (*COS0"). Based on this assessment, management
has determined that the Company’s internal control over finan-
cial reporting as of December 31, 2006 is effective.

|
Our internal control over financial reporting includes policies
and procedures that pertain to the mdintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect transzctions and
disposition of assets; provide reasonable assurances that transac-
tions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with U.S, generally accepted account-
ing principles and that receipts and expenditures are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management; and pro-
vide reasonable assurance regarding preventlon or timely detec-
tion of unauthorized acquisition, usc or disposition of the
Company’s assets that could have a miaterial effect on our consol-

idated financial statements. |

Management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006
has been audited by KPMG LLP, an independent registered
publi¢ accounting firm, as stated in their report, appearing on
page F-3 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, which express an
ungualified opinion on management’s assessment of the effective-
ness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2006, and an unquahﬁed opinion on'the effec-
dveness of the Company’s internal control over financial report-
ing as of December 31, 2006.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT
REGISTERED PUBLIC
ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
LaBranche & Co Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of
financial condition of LaBranche & Co Inc. and sublsidiaries as of
December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related cons&hdatcd state-
ments of operations, lenbes in stockholders’ equmr and cash
flows for each of the years in the three-year period clended
December 31, 2006. In connection with our audits of the consol-
idated financial statements, we have also andited the financial
staternent schedule. These consolidated financial staltemcnts and
the related financial statement schedule are the r65pon51b111t}
of.the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and the
related financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (Uni;:ed States).
These standards require that we plan and perform the andit

to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the fihancial state-
ments are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supportng the %rno‘_unts and
disclnsures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and 51g111ﬁclant estmates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a rea-
sonable basis for our opinion. ;
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of LaBranche & Co Inc. and submdmnes as of Decelmbtlzr 31,
2006 and 2003, and the results of their operations alnd their cash
flows for each nF the years in the three-year period tlznded
December 31, 2006, in conformity with U.S. gencrallv accepted
accounting principles. Also in our opinion, the related December
31, 2006 and 2005 financial statement schedule, when considered
in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as
a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information
set forth therein. '

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the
Public Company Accoundng Oversight Board (Umted States),
the effectiveness of LaBranche & Co Inc. and subsidiaries’ inter-
nal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006,
based on criteria established in Internal Cuntml—[ntegm'red
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsonng|
Org'lmz.ltmm of the Treadway Commission (COSO), and our
report dated March [, 2007 expressed an unquahﬁed opinion on
management’s assessment of, and the effective operation of;
internal control over financial reporting.

KPMG LLP
New York, New York
March 1, 2007
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REPORT OF ]NDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders”
LaBranche & Co Inc.:

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the
accompanying Managentent’s Report on Internal Control ever
Financial Reporting, that LaBranche & Co Inc. and subsidiaries -
maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal
Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Commirtee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
{COSO). LaBranche & Co Inc. and subsidiaries’ management is
responsible for maintaining effective internal control over finan-
cial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of inter-
nal control over financial reporting. Qur responsibility is to
express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion
on the effecdveness of the Cornp:mys mtemal control over finan-
cial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our andii in accordance with the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal con-
trol over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audit included obtaining an underst'mdmg of inter-
nal control over financial reportng, evaluating mnnagement 5
assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effec-
tiveness of internal control, and performing such other proce-
dures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process
deéigned to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal control over finan-
cial reporting includes thase policies and procedures that (1) per-
tain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable dewail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financtial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations

- of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide

reasonable assurance regarding prevention or imely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial
reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projec-
tions of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are sub-
ject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of

_changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management's assessment that LaBranche & Co
Ine. and subsidiaries maintained effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, is fairly stated, in all
material respects, based on criteria established in Internal
Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(COSO). Also, in our opinion, LaBranche & Co Inc. and sub-
sidiaries maintained, in all material respects, effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based
on criteria established in Inrernal Control—Integrated Framework

issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Orgamzzmons of the -

Treadway Commission (COSO).

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the

. Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States),

the consolidated statements of financial condition of LaBranche
& Co Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006 and 2005,
and the related consolidated statements of operatdons, changes in
stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the years in the
three-year period ended December 31, 2006, and our report
dated March 1, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion on those
consolidated financial statements.

KPMG LLP
New York, New York
March 1, 2007
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December 31, . 2006 ' 2005
_ Assets ' ! : I
: - Cash and cash equivalents i ’ : $ 557,352 $:427,284
. Cash and securities segregated under, federal regu]atlons 7,413 : 6,554 -
| Securities purchased under agreements to resell . 35,000 -, 79,000
Receivable from brokers, dealers and'clearmg organizations : 87,183 '596,796
Receivable from customers I . 2,859 \ 3,659
Fmanmal instruments owned, at fair value '
Corporate equities, not readily marketable ' 282,660 1 -
Corporate equities ' 1 , 1,825,503 |660,949
Options : : 705,308 393,783
Exchange-traded funds ' : 889,021 743,853
. Government and corporate bonds i ) - 283,797 ] 8
Commissions receivable- : 3,601 I 4,337
Exchange memberships contributed for use, at market value © 24,500
Exchange memberships owned, at ad]ustcd cost {market value of $4,411 and $138 768 respectively) ) 1,3 14 i 59,664
- Office equipment and Ieasehold improvements, at cost, less accumulated depreciation and
_amortization of $13,950 and $12, 364 rr.spectlvely ] 18,069 ‘ 2,695
Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortmanon : ' i
Specialist stock lists, less accumulated deprecmtlon and amortization of $65, 738 and $35.362, i
respectively ‘ : 340,452 350,828
~ Trade name : 25,011 25,011
Goodwill ‘L 250,569 ]250 569
i Other assets . | i 7 . ‘ 59,777 [ 35,419
‘  Total assets , | ' L $5,374,889 $31664,909
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equntly ‘ . i :
Llabthtles [ ] . K ;
Payable to brokers, dealers and clcarmg organizations $ 123,346 3 ! 17,811
-, Payable to customers 4,816 t 4858
Financial instruments sold, but not yet purchased, at fair value: = ’ :
-Cotporate equities . 2,330,817 1'377,184 .
- Options | Co : o : : 841,985 400,211
. Exchange traded funds | S 378,915 . 311316
Government and corporate bonds ' o 16,646 | 77,263
Accrued compensation | S - 12,027 ! 22,722
Accounts payable and other accrued expenses - 29,220 ; 21,133
Other liabilities ' . 15,175 11,859
- Income taxes pavable ' | ] - 10,513
Deferred tax liabilities S ) 256,394 - 148,263
. Short term debt . . : : 24,635 © 3,000
Long term debt o -459,811 481,425
Subordinated liabilities: 1 ’ v
Exchange memberships contrlbuted for use, at market value - 124,500
Other subordinated indebtedness | : 6,395 : 9,395
Total liabilities ! s 4,500,182 2:931,453
Common stock, $.01 par value, 200, 000 000 shares authorized; 60,733,889 and 60,623,819 . '
shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively 607 b 606
Additional paid-in eapiral | - ‘ 694,434 !689,988
Retained earnings \ 179,666 | 42,862
Total stockholders® equity I . i ¢ 874,707 {733,456
"Total liabilities and stockholders' equity ) " $5,374,889 $3,664,909

See accompanying notes te consolidated financial stiements.

t
1
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- CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(000's omitted, except per share data)

2004 .

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

For the Years Ended December 31, 2006 2005
Revenues:
Net gain on principal transactions $180,850 $194,432 $182,535
Commissions 69,814 84,018 96,045
Net gain on non-marketable investments : 65 11,029 24953
Net gain on corporate equities, not readily marketable 238,615 — —
Stock borrow interest 158,081 33,395, 3,947
Other interest 26,096 17,260 6,430
Other ¢ 473 56 5,137 .
Total revenues 673,994 340,190 319,047
[nterest expense 240,497 89,504 63,789
Toral revenues, net of interest expense 433,497 250,686 255,258
Expenses: )
Employee compensation and related benefits 88,370 103,531 - 99,310
Exchange, clearing and brokerage fees 45,711 40,664 39,010
Lease of exchange memberships and trading license fees 4,790 3,979 15,565
Depreciation and amortization 12,674 12,093 . 12,221
Legal and professional fees 9,595 11,357 12,749
Communications 9,701 9,114 8,594
Occupancy 7,925 5,133 5,254
Goadwill impairment _ — 37,600
Exchange memberships impairment — — 18,327
Debt repurchase premiuim — — 49,029
Restrucruring Costs 3,672 —, —
Other 14,046 13,688 " 13,068 °
Total expenses 196,484 199,581 310,727
Income (loss) before minority interest and provision (benefit) for income raxes . 237,013 51,105 ° (55,469
Minority Interest 1 ' — — 356
Income (loss) before pro'visiun (benefir) for income taxes- 237,013 51,105 ' (55,825)
Provision {Benefit) for Income Taxes 100,209 13,584 (12,045)

- Net income (loss) i 136,804 37,521 (43,780)
Preferred dividends and discount accretion — — 2,253
Net income (loss) applicable to common stockholders $136,804 § 37,521, $(46,033)
Weighted-average common shares outstanding:

Basic’ ' 60,723 60,617 59,905
i
Diluted 61,565 61,059 59,905
Earnings (loss) per share: .
Basic $§ 225 $ 062 $ ©7ND°
Diluted $§ 222 § 061 $ 077
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

(000's omitted, except per share data)
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See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

Additional Unearned
_ Comimon Stock Preferred  Paid-in Retained .Compen- !
! Shares Amount Stock Capital Earnings sadon! '  'Total
BALANCE, December 31, 2003 v 59,791 $598 $38,317 $ 682,816 $ 51,374 $(14)  $772964
Ner loss — — — — (43,780) ’ — (43,780)
Preferred stock dividends ‘
and discount accretion : — — — — (2,253) -, (2,253)
Recognition of tax benefits related | i
to employce option exercises | — — - 1,371 — — |- L37l
Issuance of restricted stock, shares !
for option exercises and related - ' j .
, compensation 741 7 — 2,853 — 141 3,001
" Preferred stock buyback i — — (38,317). — — — | 38317
BALANCE, December 31, 2004 } 60,332 5605 — 5687040 0§ 5341 —! $ 692,986
Net income f — — _ — 37,521 SIS VX3
Preferred stock dividends ! |
and discount accretion | — — — —-— — — ' —
Recognition of tax benefits related |
to employee option exercises i — — — — — — —
[ssuance of restricted stock, shares | '
for option exercises and related | - !
- compensation E 92 1 — 2,948 —_ - 2,949
Preferred stock buyback L — — — - — 1 —
BALANCE, December 31,2005 | 60,624 $606 — '$689988 § 42,862 733,456
Net income ;‘ — _ — — 136,804 i 136,804
Preferred stock dividends and | '
~ discount accretion — — — — — — : —
Recognition of tax benefits relared i
to employee option exercises i — — — — — - —
Tssuance of restricted stock, shares | ! -
for option exercises and related ‘ '
. compens:lt.ion ' 1‘ 110 ‘ . 1 —_ 4,446 — — 4,447
Preferred stock buyback | — — — —_ e — —_
BALANCE, December 31, 20061 60,734 $607 —  S694,434  $179,666 1 1$874,707

o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(000's omirted, except per share data)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

For the Years Ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net income (loss) $ 136,804 § 37521 $ (43,780)
Adjustments 1o reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by .
(used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 12,674 12,093 12,221
Aimnortization of debt issuance costs and bond dlscnunt - 1,928 1,753 7,380
Goodwill i Impairment — — 37,600
Minority interest in income of consolidated subsidiary — — 356
Compensation expense related to stock-based compensation 4,447 2,949 3,277
Deferred taxes, net 97,961 21,932 (12,914
Net gain on NYX transaction (130,052) —
Acceleration of preferred stock discount accretion — — 496
Other-than-temporary impairment of exchange membershlps owned — — 18,327
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: .
. Cash and sccurities segregated under federal regulations (859) 6,957 (9,552}
Securities purchased under agreements to rcsclf:’ 44,000 8,000 (74,000)
Receivable from brokers, dealers and clearing organizations 509,613 (438,375 (15,782)
Receivable from customers . 800 6,896 7.121) .
Financial instruments owned, at market value:
Corporate equities, not readily marketable (94,108) — -
Corporate equities - (1,164,554) (341,571) (53,810)
Options (311,525) (283,078) (37,011)
Exchange-traded funds (145,168) (615,639) (25,588)
Government and corporate bonds
United States Government obligations (283,789) — ® -
Commissions receivable 736 1,091 (815)
Other assets (16,070) 1,312 1,414
Payable to brokers and dealers 105,535 (102,623) 75,262
Payable to customers : (42) 1,028 (5,180)
Securities sold, but not yet purchased, at market value:
Corporate equities . 953,633 [,112,106 32,136
Options 441,774 . 307,631 25,501
Exchange-traded funds 57,599 178,581 27,595
Government and corporate bonds (60,617) 77,263 —_
Accrued compensation (10,695) (15,473) (4,638)
Accounts payable and other accrued expenses 8,087 2,888 (16,511)
Other hLabilities 3316 651) (63,085)
"Tax benefit from vesting of stock based compensation < (61) — —
Income taxes payable . (10,513) 8,842 1,671
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 150,854 (8,567) (126,559 .
Cash Flows From Investing Activities: )
Payments for purchases of office equipment and leasehold improvements (17,672) (953) {668)
Payments for purchases of exchange memberships (150) (332) (340}
Net cash used in investing acuvities (17,822) (1,285) {1,008)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Repayment of subordinated debt, promissory notes and long term debt (3,025) {6,954 (3,000)
“Tax benefit from vesting of stock based compensadon — 1,167
Repayment of minority interest — (356) 322)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options, — — 1,375
{ssuance of new senior notes -_— — 460,000
Repurchase of old notes —_ — (336,458)
Payment of common stock dividends — —_— —
Payment of preferred stock dividends — — (3,448)
Payment for preferred stock buyback — —_ {39,186)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (2,964) (7,310) 80,128
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents - 130,068 - {17,162) (47,439)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year 427,284 444,446 . 491,885
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year $ 557,352 $ 427,284 § 444,446
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Paid During the Year for: o
" Interest $° 237,633 $ 63533 $ 46471
Income taxes $ 15824 $ 525 $ 20,193
Supplemental Schedule of Non-Cash ]nvesnng and Fmancmg Activities:
Net increase in additional paid-in capiral related to stock-based awards $ 4,446 2,948 3,277
Net increase in corporate equities, not readily marketable from NYX exchange transaction. § (188,552) — —
Net increase from exchange of NYSE memberships for NYX common stock $ 58500 — —




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1. ORGANIZATION AND DESCRIPTION

OF BUSINESS ‘
The consolidated financial statemenr.‘:; include the accounts of
LaBranche & Co Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Holding
Company™), and its submdmnes LaBranchc & Co. LL.C, a New
York limited liability company, LaBranche Financial Services,
Inc., a New York corporation (which| was converted by merger
into a limited liability company on January 3, 2007 (“LFS™),
LaBranche Structured Holdings, Inc, 2 Delaware corporation
(“LSHI™), LABDR Services, Inc., a De]aware corporation
(“LABDR™), and LaBranche & Co. B V., a Netherlands private -
limited liability company (“BV”). The Holdmg Company is the
sole member of LaBranche & Co. LLC the 100% stockholder -
of LLFS, LSHI and LABDR and the sole owner of BV. LSHI is a
holding company that is the sole member of LaBranche
Structured Products, LLC, a New York limited liability company
(“LSP"), and LaBranche Structured Products Specialists LLC, a
New York limited liability company (FLSPS”), the 100% owner
_of LaBranche Structured Products Lurope Limited, a United
Kingdom single member private company (“LSPE™), and
LaBranche Structured Products Hong Kong Limited, a Hong
Kong single member private company (“LSPH”), and the sole
. stockholder of LaBranche Structured Products Direct, Inc., a
New York corporation (“LSPD” and collectively with the
Holding Company, LaBranche & Co. LL.C, LFS, LSHI,
LABDR, BV, LSP, LSPS, LSPE andELSPII the “Company”).

LaBranche & Co. LLCisa reglstcred broker-dealer that oper-
ates primarily as a specialist in equlty securities and rlghu; listed
on the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSF”) and in equity secu-
rities on the American Stock Exch’mge (“AMEX"). LFS is a reg-
istered broker-dealer and a member of the NYSE and other
exchanges and provides sccurities execution, securities clearing
and other related services to its own Eustomers and custorners of
1ntroduc1ng brokers. LIS also pTOHdES direct-access floor bro- -
kerage services to institutional customers. LSP is a registered
broker-dealer that operates as a specialist in opdons, futures and

Exchange-Traded Funds (‘ETFs”) on several exchanges, and as a

market-marker in options, ETFs and futures on several
exchanges. LSPS is a registered broker—dealer that operates as a
specialist in ETFs traded on the \TYSE LSPE operates as a mar-
ket-maker for ETFs traded on the London Stock Exchange and
the Euroex and Euronext ewcch:mges,I and is registered as a bro-
ker-dealer with the United ngdoms Financial Securities
Authotity. LSPH was organized to operate as a market-maker for
ETFs and engage in hedging tmnsacuons in Asia, and its regis-
tration as a broker-dealer with Hong Kong’s Securities and
Futures Commission was completed in October 2006. LSPD) is
an NASD member firm that was acquired by the Company in
April 2006 and is in the process of obtaining an approval from
the NASD to become an institutional execution firm in derivative
and structured products and intends to become a market-maker
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in securities quoted on the NASDAQ system. LABDR provides
disaster recovery services and back-up facilities to other,Holding
Company subsidiaries. BV represents LaBranche & Co: LLC in
European markets and provides client services to LaBranche & -
Co. LLC’ European listed companies. .

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Presentation The preparation of consollcliated financial
statements in confonnn:y with U.S. generally accepted account-
ing principles requires management to make estimates 2 and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of asslets and liabili-
ties at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from these esumates.

Certain of the Company’s December 31, 2005 statement of
finaneial condition balances have been reclassified tro conform to
the presentation in the current period, including (a) receivables
from and payables to broker-dealers and clearing organizations
and (b} financial instruments owned, and sold but not vet pur-
chased, at fair value. Certain of the Company’s Deéember 31,
2005 and 2004 statement of operations balances have been
reclassified to conform to the presentation in the current period
in order to net interest expense (including margin interest
expense) against interest income to determine the Company’s net
revenues. .

The consolidated financial statements include the qccoimté of the
Holding Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. All signifi-

+ cant inter-company halances and transactions have|been eliminat-

ed in consolidation.

Cash and Cash Equlvalents Cash and cash equivalerits include
all demand deposits held in banks, highly liquid Lmlvestmenrs with
original maturities of 90 days or less and currency positions that
are being held in the prime brokerage account at the Company’
clearing broker for its specialist and market- makmg operatlons
Certain portions of these balances are used to meet regulatory
requirements (see Note 8).

Securities Transactions Principal securities transacuons and
the related gmns and losses are recorded on a tradé date basis.
Customer securities transactions are recorded on a'settlement
date basis and the related revenues and expenses are recorded on
a trade date basis. Receivables from, and payables to, customers
represent amounts due from or to customers of the Company in
cannection with cash and margin securities transactions. The -
value of certain receivables collateralized by customers’ securities
held by the Company and by other broker-dealersfor dehverv to
the Company, is not reflected in the accompanying consohdated
financial statements. Corporate equities, options, E'TFs, futres
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and other securities owned, and securities sold, but not yet pur-

- chased, are reflected at market value and unrealized gains and
losses are presented as a component of “Net gain on principal
transactions.” ULS, Government obligations, which are reported
under “Securities owned, at fair value” are reflected at market
value. U.S. Government obligations included under “Cash and
cash equivalents,” together with related interest receivable, which

" is reported under “Other assets,” approximate market vahue,

Interest income related to U.S. Government obligations is

included in “Revenues—Interest.” Dividend income and expense

and Securides and Exchange Commission ("SEC”) fees, as well
as gains and losses from the trading of foreign currencies, are also
presented as a component of “Net gain on principal transac-
dons.” Dividend income and expense are recognized on the
record date, which does not ditfer materially from the ex-date. In
the normal course of business, the Company is permitted to use
client margin securities to finance customer securities transac-
dons, subject to certain regulatory guidelines. The market value
for equity securities, ETFs and futures contracts is based on the
closing price posted on the primary exchange on which they are
traded. The marker value of exchange-traded opticns is based on
the national best bid/offer as determined hy the Company’s
options clearing agents.

Investments in non-marketable sccurities consist of investments
in equity securities of private compantes, imited liability compa-
ny interests and limited partnership interests, and are included as
part of “Other assets” on the consolidated statements of financial
condition. These investments do not have readily available price
quotations. Non-marketable investments are accounted for under
the equity method, for those investments in which the
Company’s voting interest'is 20% to 50%, or ar fair value. In
determining fair value, management of the Company considers
third-party transactions evidencing a change in value, the finan-
cial performance of the investee, or any specific rights associated
with the investment such as conversion features. Changes in fair
value are recognized if the expected realizable value of the invest-
ment differs from its carrving value.

Corporate equities owned, but not readily marketable, consists of
our ownership of 3,126,903 shares of the restricted common
stock of NYSE CGroup, Ine. common stock. APB No. 29 (as
amended) provides guidance on exchanges of assets in a non-
monetary ransfer. Accounting for non-menetary assets acquired
in a substantially non-monétary exchange is at times based on
cost or fair value of the assets relinquished and at times on the
fair value of the assets received in the exchange. Based on the
guidance under APB No. 29, the Company valued the shares of
NYX stock received immediately after the exchange at fair value,
which was deemed to be the value of the shares on the first day
trading commenced for NYX stock. After the consummation of
the NYSE/Archipelago merger, the Company has accounted for
is investment in the NYX stock acquired in the NYSE/
Archipelago merger at the estimated fair value of such restricted
shares pursuant to the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants Audit and Accounting Guide—Brokers and Denlers

in Securites. The shares of NYX stock received in the’
NYSE/Archipelago Merger are subject to a three-year restriction
on transfer. The restricdon will be removed in equal one-third
installments on each of March 7, 2007, 2008 and 2009, unless the
restrictions are removed earlier by the NYSE Group in its sole
discretion (See note 11). Equity method investments are also
assessed for other-than-temporary impairment as considered nec-
essary,

Collateralized Financing Transactions Securittes purchased
and sold under agreements to resell and repurchase, as well as
securities borrowed and Ioaned for which cash is deposited or
received, are treated as collateralized financing transactions and
are recorded at contract amount phus accrued interest. It is the
pelicy of the Company to obtain possession of collateral with
market value equal to or in excess of the principal amount loaned
under resale agreements: Collateral is valued daily, and the
Company may require counterparties to deposit additional collat-
eral when necessary. The market value of securities received for
securities purchased under agreements to resell ar December 31,
2006 exceeded total cash paid. None of the securities received
was subsequently repledged or resold.

Intangible Assets Intangible assets arc comprised of the
Company’s specialist stock lists, trade name and goodwill
acquired in connection with various acquisitions and the limited
partner buyout that occurred in 1999 concurrent with the
Company’q reorganization from partership to C'orpor.]te form,
For material acquisitions through March 2001, the allocations of
purchase price among these assets and determinations of their
respective useful lives were based on independent appraisals. The
useful lives of the acquired specialist stock lists were determined
based upon analysis of historical turnover characteristics of the
specialist stocks comprising these lists. For acquisitions subse-
guent to March 2001, the allocations of purchase price and
determinations of useful lives were based upon managements
analysis of revenues, consideration paid, common stock listings
and other relevant data and rados. This informadon was analyzed
and compared to the results of the independent appraisals con-
ducted in connection with the acqmsmons prior to April 2001,

Goodwill In accordance with SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and

. Other Intangible Assets” (“SFAS No. 1427), goodwill is not

amortdzed. SFAS No. 142 requires that goodwill be tested annu-
ally for impainment (or more frequently when events or changes
in circumstances indicate impairment testing may be necessary)
by applying a fair value-based test. This test involves the compar-
ison of the fair value of a reportng unit to its carrying value. If
the carrying value of the reporting unit exceeds its estimated fair
value, there 1s an indication that goodwill might be impaired,
which requires additional testing. This additional testing entails
estimating the implied fair value of reporting unit goodwill—
through the use of discounted cash flows analysis and other
measures—and comparing this implied fair value of reporting
unit goodwill to its carrying value. Any excess of carrying value of
reporting unit goodwill over its implied fair value is recognized




as an impairment loss. For the years ended December 31, 2006,
2003 and 2004, the Company recordéd goodwill impairment
charges of $-0-, $-0- and $37.6 million, respectively (see Note 6).

Trade Name Under SFAS No. 142, the acquired wrade name is

not amortized. The Company tests its trade name for impairment

annually {or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances

indicate that the asset might be impaired) in conjunction with its

- goodwill impairment assessment. If the carrying amount of the
trade name exceeds its fair value, an impairment loss is recognized
in an amount equal to that excess. As of December 31, 2006, the
Company’s trade name was not impaired.
Specialist Stock Lists Acquired specialist stock lists are amortized
over their respective useful lives, The Company assesses its spe-
cialist stock lists for possible impairment in accordance with
SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of
Long-Lived Assets” (“SFAS No. 144"). Pursuant to SFAS No,
144, the Company evaluates its .acqun'cd stock lises for potendal
]I]ll)ﬂll'll]ent wh(‘,nu’(,r events or Chang(.s m LlrLllln‘jtaan_’b ln(ll—
cate. that their carrying amount may not be fully recoverable. An
impairment loss, calculated as the (|1Fft.l"t.n(.l_ between the esti-
mated fair value and the carrying V‘IIUL of the acquired stock lists,
is recognized if the expected undlqumnted cash flows re,l'mng to
the acquired stock lists are less than t}‘lt corresponding carrying
value. In conjunction with this Lva]uatlon, the Company also

- reviews the reasonableness of the S[)LC]J]ISt acquired stock lists’
remaining useful lives. Any revisions to amortization periods are
considered when developing the aforementioned undiscounted
cash flows. As of December 31, 2006, the Company’s stock lists
were 1ot impaired'pursuant to SFAS No. 144,
Exchange Memberships In auordancg with the American
Institute of Certified Public r\ccoum'mrs (“AICPA™ Audit and
Accountng Guide—Brokers and Dealers in Securities, exchange
memberships owned by the Companv are ongmally carried at
cost o, if an other-than-temporary impairment in value has
occurred, at adjusted cost, which l‘LﬂeLtb management’s estimate
of fair v a]ue In determmmg whether : an other-than-temporary
decline in value has occurred, the Compnny uses Emerging
Issues Task Force (“EITF") Issue No. 03-1, The Meaning of
Other-Than-"Temporary Impairment ‘an(I lts Application to
Ceruain Investments, and Section M of "Topic 5 of the SEC staff
accounting bulletin series (“SAB No. 597) as analogous guidance.
For the years ended December 31, 2006 2005 and 2004, the
Company recognized impairment losses of $-0-, $-0- and $18.3
million, respectively, on owned exchange memberships {see
Note 5).

On March 7, 2006, Archipelago Holdings, Inc. ("Archipelago™
and the NYSE consummated a merger in which they combined
their businesses and became wholly-owned subsidiaries of NYSE
Group, Inc., a newly-created, for-profit and publicly-traded hold-
ing company (“NYSE Group”). Prior. to the NYSE/Archipelago
merger, the Company’s specialists conducted business on the
floor of the NYSE through ownership or lease of NYSE mem-
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berships. Followmg the \TYSE/Archlpelago merger, trading
licenses replaced the prior trading rights provided l)v the owner-
ship or lease of an NYSE membership. Int January ’006 the
Company participated in a “Dutch” auction for thcsc trading
licenses and successfully bid for 90 wading licenses i l.l‘l the
Company’s Specialist and Market-Making segment {five addition-
al licenses were obtained for the Company’s Execution and
Clearing segment operations). The fee per annum for these trad-
ing licenses in 2006 was $49,290 per license.

Prior to March 7, 2006 certain employees of the Company con-
tributed the use of nine NYSE memberships to the Company.
These memberships were subordinated 1o claims ofigeneral ered-
itors were carried at market value with a corresponding amount
recorded as subordinated Habilities. The Company « made lease
payments to these employees for the use of the NYSI* member-

-ships at a rate that was commensurate with the rent pald to non-

affilinted parties for the use of their NYSE membershlps

The Company leases additional memberships on the AMER and
the Chicago Board Options Exchange® (“CBOE”) f1 om non-
affiliated parties and makes leasé payments tw these pamm at pre-
vailing market rates. Subsequent to the NYSE merger on March’
7, 2006, the Company no longer leases NYSE memberships.

Income Taxes The Company accounts for income mxtl:s using
the asset and liability method in accordance with SFAS No. 109,
“Accounting for Income Taxes.” SFAS No. 109 rcqlmres the
recognition of tax benefits or expenses based on the'esmm[ad
furure tax effects of temporary differences between the financial
statement and tax bases of an entity’s assets and lmbllmes The
effect on deferred taxes of a change in tax rates is reF()gmzed as
incorne in the period that includes the enactment date. Valuation
allowances are established to reduce deferred rax assets to the
amount that more likely than not will be realized. The

" Company’s deferred tax assets are presented as 2 component of

“Other assets” in the consolidated statements of financial condi-
tion. Tax contingencies, and related employment tax contingen-
cies, are included under “Other labilides” on the 2006 consoli-
dated statemient of financial eondition. Contingent liabilities
related to income taxes are recorded when the critetia for loss
recognition under SFAS No. 3, “Accounting for Colntingencies”
are met. :

Legal Contingencies The Company records reseryes related to
legal proceedings in “Other liabilities.” Such reserves are estab-
lished and maintained in accordance with SFAS Nol 3,
“Accounnng for Contingenctes” and FASB ]nterpreltarlon No.
14, “Reasonable Estimation of the Amount of a Loss, an
Interpretation of SFAS Statement No. 57 and SEC Staff
Accounting Bulletin No. 92, “Accounting and D]SLIOSU[‘ES
Relating to Loss Contingencies.” The determination of these
reserve amounts requires significant judgment on th:(. part of
management. Each legal proceeding is reviewed with counsel in
each accounting period and the reserve is adjusted as deemed
apptopriate by management. '
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Depreciation and Amortization Depreciation of office equip-
ment is calculated using the straight-line method over estimated
useful lives of § years. Amortization of leasehold improvements is
calculated using the term of the related lease. Estimated useful
lives of leaschold improvements range from 1 to 15.25 years.

Acquired specialist stock lists are amortized over useful lives
ranging from 15 to 40 years.

Share-Based Compensation Effective January 1, 2003 undil
December 31, 2005, the Company accounted for stock-based
employee compensation in accordance with the prospective
method prescribed by SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation-"Transition and Disclosure, an Amendment
of FASB Statement No. 123.” Under this method, compensation
expense is recognized over the related service periods based on
the fair value, as of the date of grant, of stock options and
" restricted stock units granted to employees on or after January 1,
2003. Such stock options and restricted stock units are included
. in “Stockholders’ equity” under SFAS No. 148 when services
.required from employees in exchange for the awards are ren-
dered and expensed.

Had the Company recognized compensation expense over the
relevant service period under the fair value-based mmethod of
SFAS No. 123 with respect to stock aptions granted for the year
ended December 31, 2005 and prior years, net income (Joss)
applicable to common stockholders would have been reduced (or
increased, where applicable}, resulting in pro forma net income
(loss) applicable to common stockholders and earnings (loss) per.
share as presented below:

(000’ omitted, except per share data) 2005 2004
Ner income (loss) applicable

to common stockholders,

as reperted $37,521 $(46,033)
Add: Stock-based compensation

expense, net of related tax effects,

included in reported net income

(loss) 1,542 1,647
Less: Stock-based compensation

expense, net of related tax effect,

determined under SFAS 123 (1,736) (6,908)
Pro forma net income (loss) '

applicable to common Stockholders $37,327 $(51,294)
Basic earnings {loss) per share, .

as reported . $ 062 $ 077
Basic earnings {loss) per share,

pro forma $ 062 - $§ (0.86)
Dihited earnings (loss) per share,

as reported $ 061 $ 07N
Diluted earnings (loss) per share,
~pro forma $ 061 § (0.86)

The effect of applying SFAS No. 123 in the pro forma disclosure
above may not be representative of the potential effect stock--
based compensation would have on net income (loss) in future
periods. '

In Drecember 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123(R), “Share
Based Payment.” SFAS No. 123(R) is a revision of SFAS No.
123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” and super-
sedes APB opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees” and amends SFAS No. 95, “Statement of Cash
Flows.” SFAS No. 123(R) requires compensation costs related to
share-based payment transactions to be recognized in the finan-
cial statements over the period that an employee provides service
in exchange for the award. SFAS No. 123(R) was adopted as of
January 1, 2006, using the modified prospective method. SFAS
No. 123(R) requires expected forfeitures to be included in deter-
mining share-based employee compensation expense. Prior to
the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), forfeiture benefits were
recorded as a reduction to compensadon expense when an
employee left the firm and forfeited the award. In the first quar-,
ter of 2006, the Company recorded a benefit for expected forfei-
tures on all outstanding share-based awards. The wansidon
impact of adopting SFAS No. 123(R) as of the first day of the
Company’s 2006 fiscal vear, including the effect of accruing for
expected forfeitures on outstanding share-based awards, was not
material to the Company’ financial condition, results of opera-
tions, earnings per share or cash flows for the twelve months
ended December 31, 2006 (see Note 14).

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Accounting for Tax Uncertamties In July 2006, the FASB issued
Interpretation No. 48 “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
"Tazes” (“FIN 48”). FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for income
taxes by prescribing the minimum recognition threshold a tax
position is required to meet before being recognized in the finan-
cial statements. FIN 48 also provides guidance on de-recogni-

" tion, measurement, classification, interest and penalties, account-

ing in interim periods, disclosure and transidon. FIN 48 will be
effective beginning in the first quarter of 2007. The Company
hias evaluated the potential impact of FIN 48, and at this time,
management believes contingent tax reserve and current and
deferred income taxes are adequately stated in conformity with
FAS 109 and FIN 48.

Fair Value Measurements In Septémber 2006, the FASB issued
SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (“SFAS 1577). SFAS
157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair
value and enhances disclosures about fair value measurements -
required under other accounting pronouncements, but does not
change existing guidance as to whether or not an instrument is
carried at fair value. SFAS 157 nullifies the guidance in EITF
02-3 which precluded the recognition of a trading profirt at the
inception of a derivative contract, unless the fair value of such




derivadve is obtained from a quoted market price, or other valua-
don technique incorporating observable market data. SFAS 157
also precludes the use of a liquidity or block discount, when
measuring instruments traded in an alcuve market at fair value.

- SFAS 157 requires that costs related to acquiring financial instru-
ments carried at fair value should not be capitalized, but rather
should be expensed as incurred. SFAS 157 also clarifies that an
issuer’s credit standing should be considered when mieasuring lia-
bilities at fair value. SFAS 157 is effeeluve for financial statements
issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, with
earlier application permitted and enC('Juraged SFAS 157 must be
apphed prospectively, except that the provisions related to block
discounts and the guidance in EITF 02 3 are to be applied as a
one time cumulative effect ad]ustment to opemng retained earn-
ings in the first interim period for the fiscal year in which SFAS
157 is inidally applied. The Cornpany currently is evaluating the
potendal impact, if any, that the adoption of SFAS 157 will have

. on its consolidated financial statemen'ts.

Accounting for Fair value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No, 159,
“Accounting for Fair Value Option fqr Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities ” (*SFAS 1597).-SFAS 159 permits entities to
choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other
itemns at fair value. The objective is tc$ improve financial reporting
by providing endues with the opportunity to mitigate volatility in
reported earnings caused by measurirllg related assets and liabili-
ties differently without having to apply complex hedge account-
ing provisions. The Company currendy reports the majority of
its financial assets and liabilides at falr value in compliance with
industry guidelines for brokers and dealers in securities. The

. Company has a significant i investment in intangibles and goodwill
as.well as public debt which is not aceounted for at fair value.
The Company believes SFAS 159 exempts intangible assets and
goodwill from' fair value reporting. The Company is currently
evaluating the potendal impact if any ' that the adoption of SFAS
159 will have on its financial statemer|1rs

NOTE 3. RECEIVABLE FROM AND PAYABLE TO

BROKERS, DEALERS AND CLEARING
ORGANIZATIONS |

The balances presented as receivable from and payable to bro-- -
kers, dealers and clearing organizations consist of the following:
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Dece mber 31,

{000’s omitred) 2006 [ 2005
* [
: 1
Receivable from brokers, dealers and ‘
clearing organizadons: : ‘
Securities borrowed $ 31,429 $ 19,354
Receivable from clearing brokers f
and clearing organizations 42,945 563,175
Securities failed to deliver 2,926 - 10,643
Other receivables from brokers ; .
and dealers ' . 9883 | , 3,624
$.87,183 $596,796
Payable to brokers, dealers and i
clearing organizations: i
Securides failed to receive 9,668 16,633
Payables to clearing brokers and ;
clearing organizations 101,840 —
Other payables to brokers ’ 1
and dealers 11,838 , 11,178
$123,346

$ 17,811

: 1
The Company monitors the market value of securities borrowed

on a daily basis, with additional collatera] obtained.|
: |
NOTE 4. MARKETABLE SECURITIES ;
During 2006 and 2005, the Company recognized a gam of
approximately $0.1 million and $11.0 million, respectlvelv, relat-
ed to its non-marketable investments. Included in the 2005
amount was $9.6 million related to the release of arl escrow
account held in connection with a 2004 disposition lof afn invest-
ment. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, non-marketable securi-
tes totaling $7.3 million and $7.1 million, respecu'vlely, are
included in “Other assets” on the consolidated statements of
finarcial conditon. : i

NOTE 5. EXCHANGE MEMBERSHIPS | !
As of December 31, 2005, the Company owned 39 NYSE mem-

. berships out of a total 1,366 NYSE memberships, rlepresentmg a

|
2.9% ownershlp interest in the NYSE. The Company accounted
for its investment in these memberships under the 2 djusted cost
method since its inception.

i
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In the NYSE/Archipelago merger, each holder of an NYSE
* mermbership became entitled to receive in exchange for the
NYSE membership $300,000 in cash and 80,177 shares of NYSE
Group common stock (the “NYX stock”). The Company’s 39
NYSE memberships were converted into the right to receive an
aggregate of $11.7 million cash and 3,126,903 shares of NYX
stock. The $11.7 million cash distribution was treated as mone-
tary consideration for which a realized gain was recognized in the
first quarter of 2006. .
Prior to the closing of the NYSE/Archipelago merger, the
Company participated in a “Dutch” aucton for trading licenses,
successfully bidding for 95 trading licenses at an afnnual price of
$49,290 each, the minimum bid accepted by the NYSE. The
licenses became effective for trading on the NYSE on March 8,
2006. As of December 31, 2006 the Company had surrendered
13 of these licenses. The costs of the trading licenses for 2006
was approximately $1.2 million per quarter and are included in
lease of exchange memberships and trading license fees in the
Company’s Consolidated Statement of Operations.

NOTE 6. GOODWILL AND IDENTTFIABLE

. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Goodwill As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, as required by
SFAS No. 142, the Company tested goodwill for impairment. Tt
was determined that the fair value of implied goodwill (Step 2)
exceeded its carrying value and was therefore not impaired.
Management regularly reviews any changes in facts and circum-
stance, as required by SFAS-No. 142, that could reduce the fair
value of implied goodwill below its carrying amount.

Identifiable Intangible Assets The Company’s acquired spe-
cialist stock lists are amortized over their respective lives ranging

from 15 to 40 years, with a weighted-average amortization period ,

of 39.6 years. 'The gross carrying amount, accurnulated amortiza-
. . b - .- .

ton and net carrying amount of acquired specialist stock lists are

set forth below as of December 31:

(000 omirtted)

2006 2005
Gross carrying amount $406,190 $406,190
Accumulated amordzation (65,738) (55,362)
Net carrying amount $340,452 $350,828

Amortization expense was approximately $10.4 million for each
of the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2004.
Estimated amortization expense for the existing acquired special-
ist stock lists is $10.4 million for each of the fiscal years ending
December 31, 2007 through December 31, 2011.°

NOTE 7. INCOME TAXES '

The components of the provision (benefit) for income taxes
reflected on the accompanying consolidated staterments of opera-
tions are set forth below:

For the Years Ended December 31,

(000’s omitted)

2006 2005 2004
Current income taxes:
Federal $ 1,781 $(8,0200 § 547
Foreign, state ’
and local 467 328) 322
Total current 2,248 (8,348) . 869
Deferred income taxes: :
Federal 77,828 21,073 (8,129)
Foreign, state -
and local 20,133 T 859 (4,785)
Total deferred 97,961 21,932 (12,914)
Total provision
(benefit) for
income taxes $100,209 $13,584 $(12,045)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the
estimated future tax effects of temporary differences between the
financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilides. The fol-
lowing table presents the components of deferréd tax asset and

liability balances:

For the Years Ended December 31,

(000 omitted) 2006 2005
Deferred vax assets:
Compensation related $ 3,482 $ 2179
Acquisition intangibles and
related goodwill 2,056 3,448
NOL carry-forward 3,659 - 4,265
Valuation alloWance, corporate ‘
equities, not readily marketable 9,255 —
Other 4,261 2,651
Total deferred tax assets $ 22,713 § 12,543
Deferred tax liabilides:
Acquisition intangibles
{equity purchases) $102,503 $122,740
Acquisiton intangibles and
goodwill (asset purchases) 19,380 19,906
" Corporate equities, not
readily marketable 123,405 —
Other 11,106 5,617
Total deferred tax liabilities $256,394 $148,263




The 2006 net increase in deferred tax'assets was principally
attributable to the valuation allowancé on the NYX shares
received as part of the NYSE/Archipegago merger. The carry-
back of a Federal 2004 net operating loss to 2002 resulted in an
$18.3 million refund and a 2005 state/city NOL udlization of
$27.7 million. There is no valuation allowance recorded against
the deferred tax assets. In assessing the realizaton of deferred tax
assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not
that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be
deductible, Based on the Company’s level of historical taxable
incomne, future reversals of existing taxable differences and all
other available evidence, management believes that the deferred ~
tax assets will more |1kely than not berealized.

The 2006 net increase in deferred taxillabllltles is due primarily
to the unrealized gain for tax purposes on the Company’s invest-
ment in NYX restricted stock of $123 4 million.

The Companv s effective tax rate d1fTers from the U.S. Federal
statutory income tax rate of 35.0% as st forth below:

NOTE: 8 CAPITAL AND NET LIQUID ASSET
REQUIREMENTS o
LaBranche & Co. LL.C, as a specmhst and member of the NYSE
and AMEX, is subject to the provisions of SEC Rule 15¢3-1, as
adopted and administered by the SEC, NYSE and AMEX.
LaBranche & Co. LLC is required tol‘ maintain minimuin net
capital, as defined, equivalent to the greater of $100,000 or 1/15.
of aggregate indebtedness, as defined..
\
As of December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005, LaBranche &
Co. LL.C’s net capital, as defined under SEC Rule 15¢3-1, was
$365.5 million and $459.8 million, respecuvely which exceeded
the minimum requirements by $364. 3 million and $458.1 mil-
lion, respectively. LaBranche & Co. LLC aggregate indebted-
ness to net capital ratio on those dates was 05 to 1 and .05 to I,
respecuvely .
|
The ‘\TYSE generally requires its specialist firms to maintain a
minimum dollar regulatory capital amlount in order to establish
that they can meet, with their own net liquid assets, their posi-
tion requirement. Prior to Septemberll 2006 LaBranche & Co.
LLC’ and LSP$’ net liquid asset requirements were combined.
The combined requirement was calculated by LaBranche & Co.
LLC, and this requirement was met w1th the LLC’ net liquid
. assets. Subsequent to September 1, 2006 each company was
required to compute and meet its own réquirement. As of
December 31, 2006 LaBranche & Co LLC’s NYSE minimum
required dollar amount of net liquid asser.s as defined, was
. $323.3 million and its actual net llqu1d assets, as defined, were
" $360.9 million. As of December 31, 2005, LaBranche & Co.
LLC’ and LSPS’ combined NYSE mmlmum required dollar
amount of net liquid assets, as deﬁned was $447.0 million, and
LaBranche & Co. LL.C’ actual net llquld assets, as defined were
$459.3 million. As of December 31, 2006 and December 31,
2005, LaBranche & Co. LLC’s actual: .net liquid assets exceeded
the net liquid assets requirement, thus satisfying its respective net
liquid asset requirement as of those dates. On July 25, 2006, the
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SEC approved a reduction of the minimum dollar re gulatory
capital for a specialist in cash equities and increased the i require-
ment for a specialist in ETFs. This reduction is to be effected in
four quarterly installments. After each installment, LaBranchf_ &
Co. LLC paid a dividend to the Holding Company in the
amount of $49 million on September 1, 2006 and $57 mllhon on
December 1, 2006. As a result, the Company anuelpates that
LaBranche & Co. LLC’%s aggregate required minimdm NLA will
be significantly reduced in addidonal 1nstallmems on March 1,
2007 and June 1, 2007. )
The AMEX generally requires its equity specialist ﬁlrms to main-
tain a cash or liquid asset position equal to the greater o‘f (a) $1.0
million or (b) an amount sufficient to assume a posidon of sixty

- trading units of each security in-which the equity specialist is reg-

istered. As of December 31, 2006 and December 31| 2005,
LaBranche & Co. LLC satisfied the AMEX equity specmhst lig-
uid asset requirements.

As a registered broker-dealer and member firm of the \TYSE
LFS is also subject to SEC Rule 15¢3-1, as adopted 'and adminis-
tered by the SEC and the NYSE. Under the altemanve method
permitted by this rule, the minimum required net caplml is equal
to the greater of $1.5 million or 2.0% of aggregate deb:t ltems,
as defined. As of December 31, 2006 and December 31,,2005,
LFS’ net capital, as defined, was $38.3 million and $|19 7 million,
respectively, which exceeded minimum requirements by!$36.8
million and $18.2 million, respectively. 1
As a clearing broker-dealer, LFS is subject to SEC Flluleil 5c3-3,
as adopted and administered by the SEC. As of January 3, 2007,
to comply with its December 31, 2006 requ1rement cash and
U.S. Treasury Bills in the amount of $3.7 million v»ere segregat-
ed in a special reserve account for the exclusive benéfit of cus-
tomers, thus exceeding actual requirements by $1.7 ln‘ullton As of
January 4, 2006, to comply with its December 31, 2005 require- -
ment, cash and U.S. Treasury Bills in the amount of $1.2 million
were segregated in a special reserve account for the exclusive
benefit of customers, exceeding actual requifementslb)r $1.2 mil-
lion. In addition, the Proprietary Accounts of Introducing
Brokers (“PAIB™) Calculaton is cornputed in order for corre-
spondent firms to classify their assers held by LFS as allowable
assets in the correspondents’ net capital calculation. lAs of_]anuary
3, 2007, to comply with LFS’ December 31, 2006 requlrement
cash and U.S. Treasury Bills in the amount of $5.2 d‘ulllon were
segregated in a special reserve account for the exeluswe beneﬁt of
PAIB customers, exceeding actual requirements by $l .0 ml]llon
As of January 4, 2006, to comply with LFS’ December 31, 2005
requirement, cash and U.S. Treasury Bills in the amount of $5.7
million were segregated in a.special reserve account for the exclu-
sive benefit of customers, thus exceeding actual requiretnents by
$2.0 million.

[




As a registered broker-dealer and AMEX membet firm, LSP is

" subject to SEC Rule 15¢3-1, as adopted and administered by the
SEC and the AMEX. LSP is required to maintain minimum net
capital, as defined, equivalent to the greater of $100,000 or 1/15
of aggregate indebiedness, as defined. As of December 31, 2006
and December 31, 2005, LSP’s net capital, as defined, was $68.2
million and $56.8 million, respectively, which exceeded minimum
requirements by $67.4 million and $55.7 million, respectively.
LSP’ aggregate indebtedness to net capital ratio on those dates
was .18 to | and .29 to 1, respectively.

LLSPS, as a specialist and member of the NYSE, is subject to the

provisions of SEC Rule 15¢3-1, as adopted and administered by

the SEC and NYSE. L8PS is required to maintain minimum net

. capital, as defined, equivalent to the greater of $100,000 or 1/15
of aggregate indebtedness, as defined. As of Decernber 31, 2006
and December 31, 2005, LL.SPS’ net capital, as defined, was $20.2
million and $10.7 million, respéctively, which excéeded the mini-
mum requirements by $20.0 million and $10.6 million, respec-
tively. LSPS’ aggregate indebtedness to net capital ratio on those
dates was .12 to 1 and .16 to 1, respectively. As of December 31,
2006, LSPS’ NYSE minimum required dollar amount of net lig-
uid assets, as defined, was $13.5 million. I.SPS’ actual net liquid
assets, as defined, were $19.8 million. Prior to September 1, 2006

_LSPS was not required to perform a separate net liquid assets
calculation because LaBranche & Co. LLCY actual net liquid
assets exceeded the combined net liquid assets requirement of
LaBranche & Co. LLC and LSPS.

As a registered broker-dealer and AMEX member firm, LSPD is
subject to SEC Rule 15¢3-1, as adopted and administered by the
SEC and AMEX, LSPD is required to maintain minimum net

capital, as definéd, equivalent to the greater of $5,000 or 1/15 of
aggregate indebtedness, as defined. As of December 31, 2006,

LSPD's net capital, as defined, was $3.0 million, which exceeded
its minimum requirements by $3.0 million. ’

NOTE 9. SHORT TERM AND LONG TERM DEBT
Debt Extinguishment and Refinancing On May 18, 2004, in
connection with the refinancing of certain of the Company’s
indebtedness, the Company repurchased approximately $93.1
million of its then- outstandmg $100.0 million aggregate prmcnpal
amount 9:5% senior notes due 2004 (the “2004 Notes”) and

approximately $236.4 million of its then-outstanding $250.0 mil-

lion aggregate principal amount 12.0% senior subordinated notes
due 2007 (the “2007 Notes” and, together with the 2004 Notes,
the “Old Notes™), and paid for related consents delivered by the
holders of the Old Notes on or prior to April 19, 2004, The
aggregate purchase price paid by the Company for the Old Notes
was approximately $386.9 million, which included the purchase
price, premium and consent payments of approximately $49.0
million in the aggregate, and accrued but unpaid interest on the
Old Notes up to, but not including, the settlement date. Upon the
completion of this debt repurchase and consent solicitation, the
indentures governing the remaining outstanding Old Notes were

stripped of substandally all restrictive covenants, certain events of
default and other related provisions.

In order to fund the repurchase of the Old Notes and related ™
consent solicitation, the Company issued $460.0 million aggre-
gate principal amount of new senior notes (collectively, the
“Original Senior Notes”) to qualified institutional buyers in the
United States pursuant to Rule 144A under the Securities Act of
1933, as amended (the “Securites Act™), and outside the United
States pursuant to Reguladon S under the Securides Act. The
Original Senior Notes consisted of 9.5% Senior Notes due 2009
in the aggregate principal amount of $200.0 million (the
“QOriginal 2009 Notes™) and 11.0% Senior Notes due 2012 in the
aggregate prmclpal amount of $260.0 million (the “Ongma] 2012
Notes™).

On September 10, 2004, pursuant to a registradon rights agree-
ment between the initial purchaser of the Original Senior Notes -
and the Company, the Company offered to exchange (i) its 9.5%
Senior Notes due 2009 that have been registered under the
Securites Act (the “2009 Senior Notes”), for an equal principal
amount of outstanding Original 2009 Notes and (ii) its 11.0%
Senior Notes due 2012 that have been registered under the
Securides Act {the “2012 Senior Notes,” and together with the
2009 Senior Notes, the “Senior Notes™), for an equal principal
amount of outstanding Original 2012 Notes.

The exchange offer expired on October 22, 2004, with the hold-
ers of 98.5%, or $197.0 million aggregate principal amount, of
Original 2009 Notes having tendered their Original 2009 Notes
for exchange, and the holders of 100.0%, or $260.0 million
aggregate principal amount, of the Original 2012 Notes having
tendered their Original 2012 Notes for exchange. The new
Senior Notes represent the same indebtedness as the Original
Senior Notes that were exchanged and have been issued under
the same indenture. All subsequent feferences to the term “2009
Senior Notes” include the $3.0 million principal amount of
Original 2009 Notes that were not tendered in the exchange
offer and remain outstanding.

The Senior Notes were issued pursuant to a new indenture that
is similar to the indentures that governed the Old Notes prior to
their amendment in connection with the May 2004 debt refi-
nancing. The new indenture includes certain covenants that,
among other things, limit the Company’ ability to make certain
investments, engage in transactions with stockholders and affili-
ates, create liens on the Company’s assets and sell assets or
engage in mergers and consolidations, except in accordance with
certain specified conditons. In additon, the Company ability to
incur addirional indebtedness (other than certain “permitted
indebtedness”), pay dividends, redeem stock or repurchase subor-

“dinated indebtedness prior to maturity will be limited if the

Company’s consolidated fixed charge coverage ratio is at or
below a threshold of 2.00:1 on and after December 31, 2004.
The “consolidated fixed charge coverage ratio” reflects a compar-
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ison between (1) the Company’s consolidated earnings before
interest, taxes, depremanon and amomzanon expenses, or
“EBITDA,” and (2) the sum of the Companys consolidated
interest expense and a tax-effected muluple of any dividend pay-
ments that the Company might make w1th respect to preferred
stock. As of December 31, 2006, the Companys consolidated
fixed charge coverage ratio was apprommately 1.60:1. The inden-
ture governing the Senior Notes prcmdes for certain exceptions
to the limitations on restricred payments including, for example,
the Company’s July 2004 repurchase of all then-outstanding
shares of its Series B preferred stock, repurchase of the
Company’s Senior Notes, and any restncted payments” up to an
aggregate of $15.0 million over the life of the indenture.

In addluon under the indenture govemmg the Senior Notes if,
at any time, the Company’s curnulatwe ‘restricted payments”
since May 18, 2004 generally are greater than (i) the sum of (A}
50.0% of the Company’s comulative consolldatcd net income, as
defined in the indenture, since July 1, 2004 {or, if such calcula-
tion is a loss, minus 100.0% of such loss), and (B) 100.0% of the
net cash proceeds received from any 1ssuance or sale of the

Company’s capital stock sinee July 1, ZPO4 plus (ii) $15.0 million,

the Company will not be entitled to make a “restricted payment” ¢

at such time. As of December 31, 2006 the Company’s cumula-
tive cansolidated net income since July 1, 2004 was $176.4 mil-
lion, and the Company had received approxjmately $1.4 million
upon the exercise of opdons since _]uly‘l 2004. However, because
the Company’s “Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio” as of December
31, 2006 was less than 2.00:1, the Company was able to make
restricted payments up to the minimum $15 million restricted
payment allowance. L

-

~ 'The indenture governing the Senior Notes pennits the Company

to redeem some or all of the 2009 Senior Notes on-or after May
15, 2007 and some or all of the 2012 Semor Notes on or after
May 15, 2008 at varying redemption pnces depending on the
date of redemption. In addition, the Company has the option to
redeem up to 33.0% of the aggregate principal amount of the
2009 Senior Notes at a redemption prlce of 109.5% and up w0
33.0% of the aggregate prmc1pal amount of the 2012 Senior
Notes at a redemption price of 111 0% using the proceeds of
certain equity offerings which the Company may complete on or
prior to May 15, 2007. Under the terms of the-indenture, if the
Company sells substantially all of its as‘sels or experiences specific
kinds of changes in control, the Company will be required to
offer to repurchase Senior Notes, on a'pro rata basis, at a price in
cash equal to 101.0% of their principal amount, plus accrued and

i . |
unpaid interest, if any, to the date of pprchase.

On August 2, 2004, the Company soidr its investment in Lava
Trading Inc. (“Lava™} as part of the acquisition of Lava by
Citigroup Financial Products, Inc. Upon the closing of the Lava
acquisition, which constituted an “asset sale” under the terms of
the Indenture, the Company received $39 0 million in cash.
Under the Lava acquisition ag'reement addidonal consideration
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of approximately $9.6 million was being held in escrow to secure
the Company’s indemnification obligations as a stockholder of
Lava. The full amount of this escrow was released to|thel
Company on October 31, 2005. An additional $640,960 was
received by the Company on or before October 31, 2005] in con-
nection with the settlement by Lava of certain tax and insurance
claims. Pursuant to the terms of the Indenture, thereforc, on
October 24, 2006, the Company offered to purchase Ioutz}tandmg
Senior Notes in the aggregate principal amount of up to $6.6
million. This offer expired on November 22, 2006, with 526 000
principal amount of cutstanding Senior Notcs having been ten-
dered. Following the closing of this transaction and the closmgs
of other previous offers to repurchase with 1mmaterlal tenders of
Senior Notes, approximately $199.8 million agg'regate pnnmpal
amount of Senior Notes due 2009 remained oursnandmg 'and
approximately $260.0 million aggregate principal ambunt of
Senior Notes due 2012 r_emalned outstanding. l

The Company’s short term and long term debt as-_of ‘Dec;émber :

" 31, 2006 and 2005 were as follows-

Short Term Debt As of December 31, 2006, the Companys
short-term debt consisted of $3.0 million pnncrpal amount due
June 3, 2007, with respect to the five subordinated ncl)tes in the”
initial aggregate principal amount of §15.0-million descnbed
below in Note 10 “Subordinated Liabilities,” $13.6 mllhon
aggregate principal amount of remaining 2007 ‘\Iotea!,, the carry-
ing value of which was approx;mately $13.5 million, and jeight
separate $1.0 million promissory notes (this indebtedness accrued - .
interest at the rate of 10.0% per year until August 7, I2003 and
thereafter accrues interest at a rate of 9.0% per year, ‘payable

semlannually, and maturing on August 7, 2007), |

As of December 31, 2005, the Company had no shon—tel‘m debt
other than the $3.0 million principal amount due on _]une 3,
2006, with respect to the five subordinated notes in the initial
aggrepate principal amount of $15.0 million described below in
Note 10, “Subordinated Liabilities.” !

Long Term Debt As of Decembcr 31, 2006, long termldebt of
the Company was comprised of $459.8 million aggregate princi-
pal amount of Senior Notes. Debt issuance costs, totahng
approximately $5.5 million for the 2009 Senior Notels and
approximately $7.2 million for the 2012 Senior Notes, are being
amortized over the life of the Senior Notes as an adjt:lstment to
interest expense. For the year ended December 31, 2006; interest .
expense relatcd to the Senior Notes totaled $49. 3 million.

As of December 31, 2005, long term debt of the Corlnpany was
comprised of (a) $459 8 million aggregate principal amount of
Senior Notes, (b) $13.6 million aggregate principal amount of
remaining 2007 Notes, the carrying value of which i 15 appro:n— .
mately $13.5 million, and {(c) eight separate $1.0 million | promis-
sory notes (this indebtedness accrued interest at the rate of
10.0% per year untl August 7, 2003 and thereafter accrues inter-
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est at a rate of 9.0% per year, payable semiannually, and maturing
on August 7,.2007). Debt issuance costs, totaling approximately
$5.5 million for the 2009 Senior Notes and approximately $7.2
million for the 2012 Senior Notes, are being amortized over the
life of the Senior Notes as an adjustment to interest expense. For
the year ended December 31, 2005, interest expense relared to
the Senior Notes totaled $49.2 million. For the years ended
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, interest expense related to
the $8.0 million promissory notes totaled $0.7 million, $0.7 mil-
lion and $0.8 million, respectively. -

Principal maturities of long term debt as of December 31, 2006
are as follows:

Year Ending December 31, -

(000’ omitted) “ ] Amount
2007 ‘ S —
2008 —
2009 * . 199,845
. 2000 —
2011 —
Thereafter ’ 259,966

Total o ) $459.811

NOTE 10. SUBORDINATED LIABILITIES

LaBranche & Co. LLC is a party to subordinated loan agree-
ments under which it has incurred indebredness approved by the
NYSE for inclusion as net capital, as defined. Interest is payable
quarterly at an annual rate of-10.0%. Three agreements repre-
senting approximately $1.1 million mature within the first six
months of 2007, and four agreements representing approximately

.$2.3 million mature within the last six months of 2007. These

subordinated loans all have automatic rollover provisions, and
each scheduled maturity date will be extended an additional year,
unless the lender gives LaBranche & Co. LLC seven months
advance notice that the maturity date will not be extended.
LaBranche & Co. LLC is entitled to prepay these subordinated
loans without penalty under the terms of the agreements relating
thereto. Interest expense incurred on these and other similar sub-
ordinated loan agreements which have been repaid was approxi-
mately $0.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 and
$0.4 million and $0.5 million for the years ended December 31,
2005 and 2004, respectively. - .

In 1998, LaBranche & Co. LLC tssued five subordinated notes

"+ representing aggregate indebtedness of $15.0 million, which

mature in equal installments of $3.0 million payable on June 3,
2004, 2005, 2006, 2007 and 2008, and bear interest at an annual
rate of 7.7%, payable on a quarterly basis. On June 3, 2006,
LaBranche & Co. LLC repald $3.0 million of these subordinated
notes, As of December 31, 2006, $6.0 millicn remained outstand-
ing under these subordinated notes, which are senior to all other
subordinated notes of LaBranche & Co. LLC. The agreements
covering these subordinated notes require LaBranche & Co.
LLC to comply with certain covenants that, among other things,

restrict the type of business in which LaBranche & Co. LL.C
may engage, set certain net capital levels and prohibit resuicted
payments, as defined. Interest expense incurred on these subordi-
nated notes for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and
2004 was approximately $0.6 million, $0.8 million and $1.0 mil-
lion, respectively.

NOTE 11. NYSE GROUP RESTRICTED STOCK
EXCHANGE TRANSACTION
As of December 31, 2005, the Company owned 39 NYSE mem-
berships out of 2 total 1,366 NYSE memberships, representing a
2.9% ownership interest in the NYSE. The Company accounted
for its invesament in these NYSE memberships under the adjust-
ed cost method since its inception. On March 7, 2006, the NYSE
and Archipelago completed the NYSE/Archipelago merger.

In the NYSE/Archipelage merger, each, holder of an NYSE
membership became entitled to receive in exchange for the ‘
NYSE membership $300,000 in cash and 80,177 shares of NYX

stock, In addition, immediately prior to the consummation of the*-
NYSE/Archipelago merger, the NYSE announced the declara-

- tion of a “permitted dividend” payable with respect to each

NYSE membership in the amount of approximately $70,570
($2.7 million in total for the Company’s 39 NYSE memberships),
which was equivalent to the membership’s pro rata portion of the
NYSE’s “excess cash,” as defined in the merger agreement gov-
erning the NYSE/Archipelago merger. The Company received

* the permitted dividend with respect to each of its 39 NYSE

memberships on March 14, 2006.

In the NYSE/Archipelago merger, the Company’s 39 NYSE
memberships were converted into the right to receive an aggre-
gate of $11.7 million cash (not including the permitted dividend)
and 3,126,903 shares of NYX stock. The $11.7 million cash dis-
tribution was treated as monetary consideration for which a real-
ized gain Was recognized in the first quarter of 2006.

APB No, 29 (as amended) provides guidance on exchanges of
assets in a non-monetary transfer. Accounting for non-monetary
assets acquired in a substandally non-monetary exchange is at
times based on cost or fair value of the assets relinquished and at
tmes on the fair value of the assets received in the exchange.

. Based on the guidance under APB No. 29, the Company valued

the shares of NYX stock received in the NYSE/Archipelago
merger at fair value, which was deemed to be the value of the
shares on the first day trading commenced for NYX stock, or
$67.00 per share. Based upon this inter}iretation, the Company
realized a $130.1 million gain from the exchange of its NYSE
memberships for 3.1 million shares of NYX stock, which
includes the effect of a valuation allowance due to the restrictions
on transfer applicable to the NYX stock. '

Since the consummation of the NYSE/Archipelago merger, the

" Company has accounted for its investment in the NYX stock as

corporate equities not readily marketable at the estdmated fair
value of such restricted shares pursuant to the [}mencan Institute




of Certified Public Accountants Audlt and Accounting Guide—
Brokers and Dealers in Securides. At December 31, 2006, the
NYSE closing market price for the NYX stock was $97.20 per
share as compared to the closing prlce of NYX stock on the
merger consummation date which was $67.00. This resulted in
the Company’s recognition of an unreallzed gain of $94.1 million
for the year ended December 31, 2006, which includes a valua-
don allowance due to the share restrictions and is included in net
gain on NYX transaction in the Comnpany’s Consolidated
Statement of Operaticns, The shares of NYX stock received in
the NYSE/Archipelago merger are sub]ect to 2 three-year

- restriction on transfer. The restriction will be removed in equal
one-third installments on each of March 7, 2007, 2008 and 2009,
unless the restrictions are removed earlier by the NYSE Group
in its sole discretion. o

NOTE 12. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE
The computations of basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share
are set forth below:

For the Years Ended December 31,

(000’s omitted) 2006 2005 2004

Netincome (loss)  $136,804 $37,521

Less: preferred

dividends and

discount accretion — . —
Numerator for basic

and diluted earnings

(loss) per share -

net income (loss)

applicable to

common

stockholders

‘Denominator for

basic earnings

(loss) per share -

weighted-average

number of common

shares outstanding
Dilutive shares:

Stock options — —

Restricted stock — —_

Restricted stock units 842 - 44 —
Denominator for

diluted earnings

{loss) per share -

weighted-average

number of commaon [

shares outstanding 61,565 |
Basic earnings {loss) : '

per share $ 225 5
Diluted earnings

{loss) per share $

2,253

$136,804 $37,52

60,723 60,617 59,905

(et

61,059 59,905
A (V)]

222 § 0.7

$(43,780)

$(46,033)
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The exercise prices for options to purchase an agg'regagle of
1,599,389 shares of common stock exceeded the average market
price of the Company’s common stock for the year ended
December 31, 2006, In addition, potential common shares relat-
ing to resmctcd stock and restricted stock units whose fair value
was below the average market price of the Companys common
stock for the year ended December 31, 2006 tota]ed 727,774
Accordingly, the above calculations of diluted earmngs ‘per share
for 2006 do not include the antidilutive effect of these stock
based awards. Potential common shares relating o opnons total-
ing 1,709,778 and 2,319,167 for the years ended December 31,
2005 and 2004, respectively, and to restricted stock and restricted
stock units totaling 651,518 and 574,353 for the years ended’
December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively, were excluded from
the diluted ]055 per share calculation for the years énded
December 31, 2005 and 2004 because their effect ‘qus antidilu-
bve,

NOTE 13. EMPLOYEE INCENTIVE PLANS |

Equity Incentive Plan The Company sponsors olne share-based
employee incentive plan — the LaBranche & Co Ine. Equity
Incentive Plan (the “Plan”), which provides for grants of incen-
tive stock optdons, nonqualified stock options, restncted shares of
common stock, restricted stock units, unrestricted shares and
stock appreciation rights. The fair value of the resmcted stock
awards is determined by using the closing price of, ithe Company’s
common stock on the respective dates on which the awards are
granted. Grant date is determined to be the date the compensn-
tion committee of the Board of Directors approves the grant.
Compensation costs for grants awarded under the Plan recog-

~ nized during the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 was

approximately $4.4 million and $2.9 ll"l]HlOn resPecuvely The tax
benefit realized in the Consolidated Statements ofiOperations for
the Plan was approximately $1.9 million and $1.3 mllhon for the
years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respecnvely

At December 31, 2006, unrecognized compensation C(I)St related
to the Company’s non-vested stock option and restricted stock
unit awards totaled $7.0 million. The cost of these non-vested
awards is generally expected to be recognized over a u.elghtt:d-

average period of approximately three years. ‘
i

i .
SFAS No. 123(R) generally requires share-hased awards granted
to retirement-eligible employees to be expensed unmedlately
The Company did not grant any share-based awards pnor to the
adoption of SFAS 123(R) to redrement-eligible emplovees or
those with non-substantive non-compete agreements In addi-
tion, no grants of any stock options or RSUs were changcd or
amended after the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) to reflect retire-
ment eligibility or non-compete agreements. i

The total number of shares of the Company’s common stock that
may be issued under the Plan through fiscal 2009 Imay not exceed
7,687,500 shares, of which 3,023,625 were available for grant

undler the Plan as of December 31, 2006.




Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units The Company
issued restricted stock units to employees under the Plan, prima-
rily in connection with year-end compensation. All of the

. restricted stock units (“RSUs™) outstanding as of December 31,
2006 and December 31, 2005 required future service as a condi-
tion to the delivery of the underlying shares of common stock. In
all cases, delivery of the underlying shares of common stock is
condivoned on the grantees’ satisfying certain requirements out-
lined in the agreements. Generally, the restricted stock units
become fully vested if the grantee's employment with'the

. Company terminates by reason of death or disability prior to
vesting. The grantee forfeits the unvested portion of the restrict-
ed stock units upon the terminadon of employment for any rea-
son other than death or disability. When delivering the underly-
ing shares of stock to employees, the Company generally issues
new shares of common stock, as opposed to rcnssumg treasury
shares.

The following table provides mformauon about grants of RS and

December 31, 2006, for purposes of determining share-based
award expense, RSUs with respect to 1,428,169 shares of the
Company's common stock were expected to vest, with a weight-
ed average price of $9.44 per share.

Stock Optons As of December 31, 2004, all stock options
granted to employees were fully vested and exercisable. In gener-
al, all stock options expire on the tenth anniversary of grant,
although they may be subject to earlier termination or cancella-

- tion in certain circumstances under the Plan and the stock option

agreement, such as death, disability or other terminadon of
employment prior to the tenth anniversary of grant. The dilutive -
effect of the Company’s outstanding stock options is included in
“Weighted Average Common Shares Quistanding — Diluted” on
the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations.

The following table provides informadon abour optons to pur-
chase the Company’s common stock:

Weighted

RSUs:

. Weighted !} Average
Number of Average Price Number of Exercise Price
‘ “Shares per Share- Shares per Share

RS and RSUs Outstanding as Options Qutstanding as of
of December 31, 2003 295945 December 31, 2003 3,626,891 22.92
Granted 600,000 . Options Granted — —
Vested (236,082) Options Exercised (493,890} 2.78
Forfeited (85,510) - Opucns Forfeited (813,834) 2644

RS and RSUs Outstanding as Options Outstanding as of
of December 31, 2004 574,353 December 31, 2004 2,319,167 $25.97
Granted 806,000 843 Optons Granted — —
Vested (67,354 Options Fxercised — —
Forfeited (219,333) Options Forfeited (609,389) ' 27.61

RS and RSUs Qutstanding as Options Outstanding as of
of December 31, 2005 1,093,666 December 31, 2005 1,709,778 $25.39
Granted 695,500 $10.68 Options Granted . — —
Vested (90,668) 9.38 Options Exercised — 1 —
Forfeited (128,666) 9.00 Options Forfeited (110,389) " 31.23

RS and RSUs Qutstanding as Oprions Quistanding as of
of December 31, 2006 1,569,832 $9.55 - December 31, 2006 1,599,389 $24.99

Options Exercisable as of: -

Under SFAS No. 123(R), the Company is required to estimate December 31, 2004 1,632,500 $22.18
forfeitures of RSUs for purposes of determining the Company's December 31, 2005 1,709,778 1 $25.39
December 31, 2006 1,599,389 $24.99

- share-based award expense. Applying SFAS No. 123(R) as of




" The following table summarizes informat:ion about stock options outstanding as of December 31, 3006:

!
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' Options Qutstanding Options ngercl:isable

. Weighted Average ~ Weighted Average Weighted Average
Range of ' Number Remaining Exercise Price Number Exercise Price
Exercise Prices ‘of Shares Contractual Life per Share of Shares . per Share
$11.00 - $20.99 ; 739,389 3.18 $13.94 739,389 $13.94
$21.00 - $30.99 75,000 ‘ 5.82 27.50 75,000 : 27.50
$31.00 - $40.99 . 785,000 5.02 $35.16 785,000 $35.16

‘ 1,599,389 11,599,389

No options were exercised during the years ended December 31,
2006 and 2005.

Senior Executive Bonus Plan The Senior Execudve Bonus
Plan, adopted in May 2003, is mtcncled to providé for the pay-
ment to the Company’s Chief Executwe Officer and next four
most highly compensated executive »0fﬁcers of bonuses which are

{
1

NOTE 15. DISCLOSURES ABOUT FAIR VALUE OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Substantially all the Company's assets and ]1ab|]1tles are carried at
fair value or contracted amounts, which appm)umate fair value.
The fair value of fixed rate debt, in millions, is as follqus
i

December 31, 2005

December 31, 2006

exempt from the $1.0 million deducton limitadon imposed by Carrying - Fair -Cnrryfng , Fair
Section 162{m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amend- Value Value Value + Value
ed. Bonuses are payable in cash and/for equity-based awards 3007 Notes 3.6 19.2 TV 127
under the Company’s EIP. For the year ended December 31, . !
2009 Senior Notes  199.8 208.8 199.8 211.8
2004, no bonuses were paid under this plan. For the years ended . . \ -
D 2012 Senior Notes  260.0 282.1 260 0! 2834
ecember 31, 2006 and 2005, cash bonuses totaling approxi- _ 204 | 0.8

mately $2.6 and $3.3 million, rcspequvely, were paid under this
plan, and such amount is included in employee compensation
and employee benefits in the Company’s Consolidated
Statements of Operations.

NOTE 14. RETIREMENT PLAN
The Company has a defined contribution redrement plan (the
“Plan”) that is subject to the provisions of the Employee
Redrement Income Security Act of 1974 (“ERISA”).
"All employees are eligible to pammpate in the Plan after they
have completed three months of service. Participants are entided

" to contribute voluntarily in an amount equal to not less than 1%
and not more than 60% of their annual pre-tax compensation, up
to the maximum amount permitted \ under Internal Revenue -
Service (“IRS”) reg'ulauons for che appllcable Plan year. The
Company, acting in its sole dlscreuon can declare and make
employer matching contributions and additional voluntary con- -
tribudons for ail eligible employees who have completed one
year of service, and/or have been credlted with 1,000 hours of
service. During the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and

" 2004, the Company contributed approxlmately $1.1 million, $1.1

" million and $0.8 million, respecuvely, as employer matching con-
tributions to the Plan, and such amounts are included in employ-
ee compensation and employee benefits in the Company’s
Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Other 17.4 17.6

For 2006 and 2005, the fair value of the 2007 Notes was deter-
mined using current marker rates to discount thelrl cash flows as
of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectvely. The fair values of
the 2009 Senior Notes and 2012 Senior Notes were determined
hased upon their respective market values as of December 31,
2006 and 2003, respectively. For both fiscal years, the fair value
of the fixed rate and other notes was determined ulsmg current
market rates to discount their cash flows. '

NOTE 16. BUSINESS SEGMENTS - .

Segment information is preserited in accordance with SFAS Neo.
131, “Disclosures About Segments of an Enterpns'e and Related
Information.” The Company’ business segments are based upon
the nature of the financial services provided, their revenue source
and the Company’s management organization,

The Company’s Specmhst and Market-Making segment operates
as a specialist in equities and rights listed on the NYYSE, as a spe-
cialist in equities, options, ETFs and furures on several It:x(:hanges
as well as a market-maker in ETFs, futures and options on several
exchanges. This segment also provides support semces for the
NYSE specizlist activities. The Specmhst and Markct-Makmg
segment currently includes the'operadons of LaBmInché & Co.
LLC, LSP, LSPS, LSPE, LSPH, LSPD, LABDR and BV since
they share similar economic characteristics.
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The Company’s Execution and Clearing segment provides securi-
ties execution, securities clearing and other related services to its
own customers and customers of introducing brokers. This seg-
ment also provides direct-access floor brokerage services to inst-
tutional customers. The Execution and Clearing segment cur-
rently includes the operations of LFS.

Revenues and expenses directly associated with each segment are
included in determining its operating results. Other expenses,

including corporate overhead, which are not directly attriburable
to a particular segment, generally are allocated to each segment
based on its resource usage levels or other appropriate measures.
Interest with respect to the Senior Notes, certain’administratuve
expenses, corporate overhead expenses and other sources of rev-
enues are not specifically allocared by management when review-
ing the Company’s segments’ performance, and appear in the
“Other” section. Selected financial information for each segment
is set forth below:

N

For the Years Ended December 31,

(000’ omitted) 2006 2005 2004
Specialist and Market-Making Segment:
Revenues, net of interest expense $ 427,719 $ 246,061 $ 235178
Operating expenses 135,202 131,965 127,305
Goodwill impairment — — 37,600
_Exchange membershipsimpairment - — 16,300
Depreciation and amortizadon expense 11,173 11,516 “11,649
Income (loss) before minority interest and taxes $ 281,344 $ 102,580 $ 42,324
Segment goodwill ! 250,569 250,569 250,569
Segment assets $5,095,236 $3,483,206 $1,849,108
Execution and Clearing Ségment: :
Revenues, net of interest expense $ 53,724 ’ § 42362 $ 47,838
Operating expenses 37,832 44,861 52,199
Exchange memberships impairment - — 2,027
Depreciation and amortizadon expense 439 450 470
Income (loss) before taxes $ 15453 5 (2,949 § (6,838
Segment assets $ 93,861 & 51940 $ 54724
Other (1): .
Revenues, net of interest expense $ (47,946) $ (37,737 $ (27,778)
Operating expenses 10,776 10,662 14,046
Debt repurchase premium. —_ — 49,029
Depreciation and amortization expense 1,062 127 102
Loss before taxes $ (59,784) $ (48,526) $ (90,955)
Segment assets $ 185,792 . § 129763 l $ 151,265
Total: .
Revenues, net of interest expense $ 433,497 $ 250,686 § 255238
Operating expenses " 183,810 187,488 193,550
Goodwill impairment — _ 37,600
Exchange memberships impairment — — 18,327
‘Debt repurchase premium — — ) 49,029
Depreciaton and amortization expense 12,674 12,093 12,221
Income {loss) befofe mir-m'riry interest and taxes $ 237,013 $ 51,105 $ (55,469
Goodwill 250,569 250,569 250,569 -
Total assets $5,374,889 53,664,909 §2,055,097

(1) Other is comprised primarily of the interest costs on the Holding Company’s indebtedness, unallocated corporate administrative expenses, including legal cost,
unallocated revenues (primarily gains from non-marketable invesunents and interest income), and eliminarion entries. '




NOTE 17. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH
CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT AND
OFF-BALANCE SHEET RISK | )

As specialists and market-makers on the NYSE, AMEX,

NYBOT, PHLX and other exchanges, LaBranche & Co. LLC,

LFS, LSP, LSPS and LSPE are engaged in various securities

trading and lending activities. In connection with their specialist

activities, LaBranche & Co. LLC, LSP, LSPS and LSPE assume
positions in stocks for which they aré responsible. LaBranche &

Co. LLC, LFS, LSP, LSPS and LSPE are exposed to credit risk

associated with the nonperformance of counterparties in fulfilling

their contractual obligations pursuant to these securities transac-
tions, and they are also exposed to market risk associated with the
sale of securities sold but not yet purchased, which can be direct-
ly impacted by voladle trading on the NYSE, AMEX and other
exchanges. Addmona]ly, in the event ' of nonperformance and
unfavorable market price movemems LaBranche & Ceo. LLC,

LFS, LSP, LSPS and LSPE may be rcqmred to purchase or sell

financial instruments, which may result in 2 loss.

The Company enters into collateralized financing agreements in
which it extends short-term credit to major financial institutions.
The Company controls access to the collateral pledged by the
counterparties, which generally consmts of U.S. equity and gov-
ernment securities. The value and adequacy of the collateral are
continually monitored. Consequently, the risk of credit loss from
counterparties’ failure to pcrform 1n‘ connection with collateral--
ized lending activities is minimal.

In addition, LFS, through the nonn}ll course of business, enters
into various securities transactions as agent. The execution, settle-
ment and financing of those transactions can result in off-balance
sheet risk and concentration of credit risk. LFS’ execution and
clearing activities involve settlement and ﬁnancing of various cus-
tomer securities transactions on a cash or margin basis. These
activides may expose LFS to off-balance sheet risk in the event
the customer or other broker is unable to fulfill its contractual
obligations and LES has to purchasé or sell securities at a loss. For
margin transactions, LFS may be cxposcd to significant off-bal-
ance sheet risk in the event margin requirements are not sufficient
to fully cover losses that customers rfnay incur in their accounts.

LFS seeks to control the risks associated with customer activities
by requiring customers to maintain fmargin collateral in compli-
ance with various regulatory and internal guidelines. LFS moni-
tors margin levels daily and pursuant to such guidelines, requires
customers to deposit additional collateml or reduce positions
when necessary. }

} :
LFS is engaged in various brokerage activities in which its coun-
terparties primarily include broker-dealers, banks and other
financial institutions. LFS may be exposed to the risk of default,
which depends on the creditworthiness of the counterparty. It is
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LFS$’ policy to review, as necessary, the credit standing of each
counterparty with which it conducts business, ;

LSP and LSPS use derivative financial instruments; including
exchangc -traded options, ETFs and demestic and formgn futures
contracts, for trading purposes,and to financially hedge other
positions or transactions as part of their specialist and market-
making businesses and overall risk management process These
financial instruments subject LSP and LSPS to varlylng degrees
of market, credit and foreign exchange risk. LSP and LSPS
record their derivative trading activities at market ‘Iralué with
corr’esponding gains or losses recorded in “Net galln on prmmpa]
transactions.” Gains or losses from foreign currency transacuons
are also recorded in “Net gain on principal transactions.” In
order to minimize risk, management condnually mfomtors posi-
tions, gain and loss, volatility and other standard nsk measures on
a real-time basis and communicates its risk tolerante to LSP’
and L8PS’ traders.

\IOTE 18. RESTRUCTUR]NG

During the fourth quarter of 2006, the Company approved and
implemented a restructuring plan, that was completed by January
2007, that was designed to improve the future operating position
of the Company. The planned action included termination of
employees whose services were no longer deemed necessary due -
to increased automadon with the introduction of the HYBRID
market. ‘Total costs incurred under this plan was $3 7 million-
which was expensed in 2006. These amounts conSISted of sever-
ance payments to terminated employees and are included in
restructuring costs on the statément of operations. |Of the $3.7

- million expensed, $1.2 was paid in the fourth quarter of 2006,
.and the remaining payable balance of 52.5 million|disbursed in

January 2007. For 2006, the restructuring expenses incurred by
segment are as follows (000s omitted):

Specialist and  Execution and
Market Making Clearing Total
Severance :
payments $ 3,500 $ 200 $3,700

NOTE 19. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Contingencies

Specialist Trading Investigations. On March 30, 2004 LuBranche &
Co. LLC and other NYSE specialist firms entered into agree-
ments with the SEC and NYSE to settle the SEC]and NYSE
investigations toncerning alleged improper specialist tradmg '
practices by specialists on the NYSE. Pursuant tolthc settlemnent,
LaBranche & Co. LLC consented, without admitting, or denying
any wrongdoing, to an SEC order instituting admllmstranve .
cease-and-desist proceedings, making findings, and imposing
remedial sancrions and a cease-and-desist order. The SEC’ find-
ings, neither admiued nor denied, included viclations by
LaBranche & Co. LLC of Sectien 1 1(b) of the Exchange Act and
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Rule 11b-1 promulgatéd thereunder, NYSE Rules 104, 92, 123B,
401 and 342, and Secton 15(b)@)(E) of the Exchange Act. The
Section 15(b)(4)E) finding includes a failure reasonably o super-
vise individual specialists who, the finding states, violated Section
10(b} of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereun-
der with respect to transactions in six particular stocks. Pursuant
1o the settlement, LaBranche & Co. LLC paid $41.6 million in
restitudon and $21.9 million in a civil money penalty, which the
Comipany acerued for the year ended December 31, 2003, in
connection with trades that occurred during the yéars 1999
through 2003 and agreed to certain undertakings stated in the
SEC’ order.

INYSE, civil and/or eriminal charges have been pursved against a
number of individuals employed or formerly employed as special-
ists at the five largest NYSE specialist firms, including employees
and former employees of LaBranche & Co. LLC.

In re LaBranche Securities Litigation. On or about October 16,
2003 through December 16, 2003, nine purported class action
lawsuits were filed by purchasers of the Company’s common
stock in the United States District Court for the Southern
District of New York, including Sofran v. LaBranche & Co Inc,,
et al., No. 03 CV 8201, Semon v. LaBranche & Co Inc,, et al,,
No. 03 CV 8255, Haug v. LaBranche & Co. Inc,, et al., No. 03
CV 8265, Labul v. LaBranche & Co Inc., et al,, No. 03 CV 8365,
Murphy v. LaBranche & Co Inc,, et al.,, No. 03 CV 8462, Strain
v. LaBranche & Co Inc., et al,, No. 03 CV 8509, Yopp v.
LaBranche & Co Inc,, et al., No. 03 CV 8783, Ferris v.
LaBranche & Co Inc,, et al., No. 03 CV 8806, and Levin v.
LaBranche & Co Inc,, et al., No. 03 CV 8918. On March 22,
2004, the court conselidated these lawsuits under the caption In
re LaBranche Securities Litigation, No. 03 CV 8201, The court
named the following lead plaintiffs: Anthony Johnson, Clyde
Farmer, Edwin Walthall, Donald Stahl and City of Harper
Woods Retirement System. .
On June 7, 2004, plaintiffs filed a Consolidated Class Action
Complaint. On July 12, 2004, plaintiffs filed a Corrected
Consolidated Class Action Complaint. Plaintiffs allege that they
represent a class consisting of persons and entities that purchased
or otherwise acquired the Company’s common stock during the

period beginning on August 19, 1999 and concluding on October |

15, 2003. Plaintiffs allege that the Company, LaBranche & Co.
LLC, and certain of the Company’s and/or LaBranche & Co.
LLC's past or present officers and/or directors, including George
M.L. LaBranche, IV, William J. Burke, ITI, James G. Gallagher,
Alfred O. Hayward Jr., Robert M. Murphy and Harvey S.
“Traison, violated Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule
10b-5 promulgated thereunder and Section 20{a) of the
Exchange Act by failing to disclose the alleged improper special-
ist trading that was the subject of the specialist trading investiga-
dons described above. Plaintffs also allege that Mr. Gallagher
violated Section 20A of the Exchange Act and two other of the

Programs, Inc.

Company’s past or present officers and/or directors, S. Lawrence
Prendergast and George E. Robb, Jr,, also wolated Section 20(a)
of the Exchange Act. Plaintiffs seek unspec1ﬁed money damages,
attorneys’ fees and reimbursement of expenses. ,

On December 12, 2005, motions to dismiss were granted in part
and denied in part. The court dismissed the Section 10(b) claims
i their entirety against Méssrs. Burke, Gallaghér and Traison,
dismissed the Section 10{b) claims for the period August 19, 1999
through December 30, 2001 against Messrs. LaBranche, Murphy
and Hayward, and dismissed the Section 20A claxm against Mr.
Gallagher.

In re NYSE Specialists Securities Litigation. On or about
October 16, 2003 through December 16, 2003, four purported
class action lawsuits were brought by persons or entities who
purchased and/or sold shares of stocks of NYSE: listed companies
for which LaBranche & Co. LLC and any other NYSE specialist
firm acted as specialist, including Pirelli v. LaBranche & Co Inc. "
et al., No. 03 CV 8264, Marcus v. LaBranche & Co Inc., et al,,
No. 03 CV 8521, Empire v. LaBranche & Co Inc., et al., No. 03
CV 8935, and the California Public Employees’ Retirement -
Systemn (CalPERS) v. The New York Stock Exchange Inc, etal,,
No. 03 CV 9968. On March 11, 2004, a fifth action asserting
similar claims, Rosenbaumn Partners, LP v. The New York Stock
Exchange, Inc., et al, No. 04 CV 2038, was filed in the United
States Distriet Court for the Southern District of New York by
an individual plaintff who does not-allege to represent a class.
On May 27, 2004, the court consolidated these lawsuits under
the caption In re NYSE Specialists Securities Litgation, No. CV
8264. The court named the following lead plaintiffs: California
Public Employees’ Retirement System (“CalPERS”) and Empire

On September 15, 2004, plaintiffs filed a Consolidated .
Complaint for Violation of the Federal Securities Laws and
Breach of Fiduciary. Duty alleging that they represent a class con-
sisting of all public investors who purchased and/or sold shares of
stock listed on the NYSE from October 17, 1998 to October 15,
2003. Plaindffs allege that the'Company, LaBranche & Co. LLC,
Mr. LaBranche, and other NYSE specialist firms and their
respective parents and affiliates violated Section 10(b), Rule 10b-
§ and Section 2(}a) by failing to disclose the alleged improper
specnahst trading that was the subject of the specialist trading
investigations described above, improperly profiting on purchases -
and/or sales of NYSE-listed securides and breaching and/or aid-
ing and abetting breaches of fiduciary duty. Plaintiffs also name
the NYSE as a defendant. Plaintiffs seek unspecified money dam-
ages, restitution, forfeiture of fees, commissions and other com-
pensation, equitable and/or injunctve relief, including an
accounting of and the imposition of a constructive trust and/or
asset freeze on trading proceeds, and attorneys’ fees and reim-
bursement of expenses.
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On December 12, 2005, defendants modon to dismiss was
granted in part and denied in part. The court dismissed plaintiffs’
Secdon 10(b) and Section 20(a) cl:nms against all defendants for
conduct that occurred bcfore]nnuary 1, 1999 and dismissed
plaindffs’ breach of fiduciary dury clalms against all defendants.
The court also dismissed all claims agamst the NYSE and certain
claims against certain parents and affiliates of specialists other
than LaBranche & Ceo: LLC. ‘

On February 2, 2006, plaintifts ﬁled an Amended Consolidated
Complaint for Violation of the Fedcral Securities Laws and
Breach of Fiduciary Duty, adding Rubert A. Martin as a plainuiff.
This complaint is otherwise identical to plaintiffs’ Consolidared
Complaint for Violation of the Federal Securities Laws and
Breach of Fiduciary Dury. {w
On February 22, 2007, the court removed Empire Programs,
Inc. as co-lead plamnff leaving CALPERS as the sole lead plain-
uff.

|
NASD/AMEX Notice of Disciplinary Artion. On December 135,
2004, LaBranche & Co. LLC received a notice from the NASD
Amex Regulaton Division stadng a'preliminary determination to
seek disciplinary action against LaBranche & Co. LLC for viola-

" tions of certain federal securities laws and the Amex Constitution

and Rules, including Sections 10(b), 9A and 17(a) of the
Exchange Act, in connection with manual book freezes effected
in one of LaBranche & Co. LLC’s Amex specialist stocks during
the penod March 8, 2004 through October 21, 2004. Prior to
receiving this notice, the Company'had determined that the indi-
vidua! specialist responsible for the Ibook freezes failed to adhere
to company policy and had terminated that employee. ‘The
Company submitted a response to the staff in January 2005 of
the NASD Amex Regul:mon Dmsmn setting forth the reasons
why disciplinary action should not bc brought against LaBranche
& Co. LLC and the Company is cooperanng with the NASD
Amex Regulation Division in th:s matter.

The Company believes that the clalms asserted against the
Company by the plaintiffs in the pendmg proceedings described

“above are without merit, and the Company denies all allegations
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of wrongdoing. There can be no assurance, however, as to the
ourcome or timing of the resolution of these proceedings. The
Company therefore is unable to estimate the amount or potential
range of any loss that may arise out of these proceedings. The
range of possible resolutions could include determljnations and
judgments against the Company or settlements that could require
substantial payments by the Company thar could have a material

- adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition, results of

operations and cash flows.

In addition to the proceedings described above, the Company has
been the target, from time to time, of various claims, lawsuits and
regulatory actions incidental to the ordinary course of|the
Company’s business. While the uldmate outcome of those claims,
lawsuits and regulatory actions which currently are pendmg can-
not. be predicted with certainty, the Company beheves, based on
its understanding of the facts of these claims, proceedmgs and
regulatory actions, that their ultimate resolution will niot, in the
aggregate, have a material adverse effect on the Clomp'an}fs finan-
cial condition, results of operatons or cash flows. :

Commitments The Company has entered into long:term non-
cancelable operating lease agreements for certain office space and
equipment, which expire at varjous dates r_hrough£2017. Certain
lease agreements contain escalation clauses providing for
increased rental payments based on increases in maintenance
charges and real estate taxes. Minimum future rental comimit-
ments under existing non-cancelable leases for office space and
equipment are as follows: f

Years lindfng December 31, i

2007 . $ 2,990,579

2008 t 1,860,226
2000 | 1,693,269
2010 1,617,813
2011 1,661,583
Thereafter , ' 9,021,690

Total _ $18,845,160
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_ LaBRANCHE & CO INC. (Parent Company Only)
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

(000's omitted, except share dam)

December 31, : 2006 2005
ASSETS ' :
Cash and cash equivalents $ 114,298 § 27,710
Securities purchased under agreements to resell ) 35,000 T 79,000
Investment in subsidiaries, at equity value 1,201,193 1,117,978
QOther assets N : 41,702 25,867
Total assets : ‘ $1,412,193 $1,250,555
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Liabilities:
'Interest payable . $ 7,195 $ 6854
Accrued compensation ‘ 2,575 974
Accounts payable and other accrued expenses 23,425 5,972
Other liabilides - . 14,210 11,259
_ Income taxes payable _ 2,699 5,643
" Deferred tax liabilities 5,937 4,972
Short term debt - 21,634 —
Long term debt . 459,811 . 481,425
Toual liabilities o ~ 537,486 517,099,
Common stock, $.01 par vé]u:e, 200,000,000 shares ::lutllorizc;d;
60,733,889 and 60,623,819 shares issued and outstanding ar
December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively . ' _ 607 606 -
- Addidonal paid-in-capital 694,434 689,988 ‘
Retained earnings 179,666 42,862
Total stockholders’ equity : 874,707 733,456
$1,250,555

‘Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity - $1,412,193

See accompanying notes to condensed financial statements.




. . i .
LaBRANCHE & CO INC. (Parent Company Only)
CONDENSED STATENI}ENTS OF OPERATIONS )

{000's omitted) .
! !
[ ! )
For the Years Ended December 3 1l B 2006 2005 j 2004
REVENUES (LOSS): ‘ ' . | '
Earnings from investment in subsidiaries ' $175,219 $63,080 § 963
Investment income | 10,650 18,990 Yo30,775
Total revenue f _ -~ 185,869 82,070 © 31,738
Interest expense | ) 52,977 51,726 - 53,809
Total revenues, net of interest expjense : 132,892 30,344 P22,071)
 EXPENSES: | | ; :
Employee compensation and related benefits 6,856 - 7,042 . 7,192
Debt repurchase premium | — S ;49,029
Other , | : 10,602 8,750 11,701
Total expenses ] 17458 15,792 | 67922
Income (loss) before income tax bleneﬁt ' 115,434 _ 14,552 1 (89,993)
INCOME TAX BENEFIT ! 21,370): (22,969} C (46,213)
*Net income (l6ss) : : 136,804 37,521 " (@3,780)
Preferred dividends and discount accretion ’ - —_ v 2,253
‘Net income (loss) applicable to common stockholders $136,804 §37,521 ! $(46,033)
' i

[

" See accompanying nates to condensed financial statements.
i

}
i
| i
| - |
!
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LaBRANCHE & CO INC. (Parent Company Only)

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN

{000's omitted)

Additional

"Common Stock . Preferred " Paid-in

. Shares Amount Stock Capiral

Retained

Earnings

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY '

Unearned -
Compen- -

saton

Total

BALANCE, December 31, 2003

Net loss. . '

Preferred stock dividends and -
discount accretion

Recognition of tax benefits
related to employee option
exercises

Issuance of restricted stock, shares
for option exercises and related
compensation

Preferred stock buyback

59,791 ' $598 $ 3807 $ 682,816

— — — 1,371

~]
e
—
-1

- 2,853
— — 3831 —

$ 51,374

(43,780)

(2,253)

$(141)

§772964 . .

(43,780)

(2,253)
1,371

- 3,001
(38,317)

BALANCE, December 31, 2004
Net income
- Preferred stock dividends and

discount accretion ,

Recognition of tax benefits related
to employee option exercises

Issuance of restricted stock, shares
for option exercises and related
compensaton .,

Preferred stock buyback

60,532 3605 —  $687,040

92 . — 2948

$ 692,986
37,521

2,949

BALANCE, December 31, 2005

Net income o

Preferred stock dividends and
discount accretion

Recognition of tax benefits'related
to employee option exercises

Issuance of restricted stock, shares
for option exercises and related
compensation

Preferred stock buyback

60,624  $606 —  $689,988

1o . 1 — 4,446

$ 42,862
136,804

$733,456
136,804

4,447

‘BALANCE, December 31,2006

$179,666 -

$874,707

60,734 $607 —  $694,434

'
See accompanying notes to condensed financial statements.




LaBRANCHE & CO INC. (Parent Company Only)
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(000's omitted)

For the Years Ended December 31, 'l

See accompanying notes to condensed financial statements.
!

2006 2005 2004
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERAT[NG ACTIVIT[ES i B
Net income (loss) $136,804 $37,521 $ (43,780)
Adjustrents to reconcile net mcame {loss) to net cash
~ provided by (used in) operating activities: : _ g :

' Depreciation and amortization of intangibles 1,064 127 , 102
Amortization of debt issuance costs and bond discount 1,883 1,708 7,335
Compensaton expense related tp stock based compensation 310 140 4 1,169
Tax benefit related to exercise of stock options’ —_ — P 1,424
Acceleradon of preferred stock dlscount accretion — : — r 496
Undistributed equity earnings from investment in subsidiaries (175,219) (63,080) i (963)
Deferred tax benefit | (21,370) (22,968) ' (46 213)

Changes in operating assets and liabilities: '
Securities purchased under agreernems to resell 44,000 8,000 : (74,000)
Other assets (17,280) 57,104 1 (3,948)
Interest payable 341 — 1 (7,577)
Accrued compensation 1,601 (19,171) (11 924) -
Accounts payablc and other accrued expenscs 17,453 o) ' (22,225)
Other liabilities I 2,951 (1,13 l)_ i 314
Taxes payable . i 19,391 8,858 | 42,380
Net cash provided by (used in) opemﬁng activities 11,929 7,106 157,410
. | ’
|
CASH FLOWS FROM ]NVESTII!\IG ACTIVITIES: !
Payments for office equipment and leaseheld improvements (17,319) (174) ; (3%)
Return of capirtal from subsidiary 152,000 77,309 £ 86,000
Payment for investment in subsidiary (60,025) (54,897) i {59,000)
Net cash provided by investing activities 74,656 22,238 i 26,945
: !
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANC]!NG ACTIVITIES: i
" Repayment of subordinated debt and promissory notes (26) {2,063) E —
Payment of common and preferred dividends — — 1 (3,448)
Proceeds from exercise of stock optmns — — 1,375
Issuance of new senior notes — — i 460,000
Repayment of old notes i — o ' (336,458)
Payments for preferred stock buyback — — : (39,186)
Net cash (vsed in) provided by ﬁn_ancmg activites (26) (2,063) 82,283
Effect of foreign currency translation 29 .56 , &)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 86,588 27,337 i (48,219)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year 27,710 373 | 48,592
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year $114,298 $27,710 5 . 313
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH PAID .
DURING THE YEAR FOR: | o
Income taxes : $ 15,819 $1765 | 8 404
Interest $ 50,061 $50,019 $ 53,539




LaBRANCHE & CO INC. (Parent Company Only) : '
NOTES TO CONDENSED FINAN CIAL STATEMENTS , f

l
NOTE 1: OVERV[EVV
: The accompanying condensed financial statements of LaBranche
& Co Inc: (Parent Company Only) should be read'in conjunction
- with the:consolidated financial statements of LaBranche & Co
Inc. and Subsidiaries and the notes thereto contamed elsewhere
in this ﬁlmg ' :

- NOTE 2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION
. Certain of the Company’s December 31, 2005 and 2004 balances
. have been reclassified to conform to the presentation in the
. current period in order to net interest expense (including margin
interest expense)-against interest income to determine the
Company’s net revenues. This reclassification reflects a critical
component of the Companys specialist and market;makmg
+ activities.-None of these 2005 and 2004 reclassifications affects
the Company’ net income before provision for income taxes or
. net income applicable to common stockholders, as reported on

previous 2005 and 2004 resu]ts

NOTE 3 TRANSACTIONS WITH SUBSIDIARIES
LaBranche & Co Inc. has transactions with its consolldated
subsidiaries determmed on an agreed—upon b3515

LaBranche & Co Inc. recewed cash dividends from its consolidat-
ed subsidiaries totaling  $152.0 million, $77.3 million and $86.0
million for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectlvely
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